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STATEMENT 0F MANAGEMENT' S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The     management     of    NEGOSYONG     PINOY     (VENTURE     SOUTH)     FINANCE
CORPORATION   is   responsible  for  the   pi'eparation   and   fair  presentation   of  the   financial
statements  including the schedules  attached tlierein, for the years ended  December 31,  2017 and
2016,  in accordance with the prescribed financial  reporting framework indicated therein,  and  for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In  preparing  the  financial  statements,  management  is  responsible  for  assessing  the  Company's
ability to continue as a going concern,  disclosing,  as applicable  matters related  to  going concern
and using the going concern basis of accountii`g unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

The  Board  of Directors  reviews  aiid  approves the  financial  statements  including  the  schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the shareholders.

Perez, Sese, Villa &  Co., the  independent auditor appointed by the shareholders,  has audited the
financial statements of the Company  in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in
their report to  the  shareholders, has  expressed their opinion  on the fairness  of presentation  upon
completion of such  audit.
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PEREZ, SESE, VILLA & Co.
CERTIFIED  PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENT 0F
INI)EPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors
NEGOSYONG PINOY (VENTURE SOUTI.D FINANCE CORPORATION
6th floor, New Semicon Building
Marcos Highway, Brgy. Dela Paz
Pasig City

We  have  audited  the  financial  statements  of NEGOSYONG  PINOY  (VET`ITURE  SOUTH)
FINANCE   CORPORATION  for  the  year  ended  December  31,  2017,   on   which   we   have
rendered the attached report dated April  10, 2018.

In compliance with SRC  Rule 68, we are stating that the Company has a total number of four (4)
shareholder owning one hundred ( loo) or more shares each as of December 31, 20] 7.

PEREZ, SESE, VII-LA & CO.
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0222, Issued September  18, 2017

Valid until August 20, 2020
SEC A.N. (Firm) 0336-F, Group 8 Category, Issued January 19, 2017

Valid until January  19, 2020
IC A.N. (Firm) F-2017/008-R, Issued August 30, 2017

Valid until August 29, 2020

For tlie Firm:

•        : ...,:\; i,`\\!.i.

.CLG

TIN 212-955-173-000
PTRNo. 7010225

Issued on January  10, 2018
SEC A.N. (Individual)  1606-A, Group 8 Category, Issued January  19, 2017

Valid until January  19, 2020
BIR No.  06-002735-001 -2017,  Issued January 04, 2018

Valid until January 03, 2021
IC A.N. (Individual)  SP-2017/009-R, Issued August 30, 2017

Valid until August 29, 2020

Manila, Philippines
April  10,  2018

9th  Flcor Uni`  C Maic  2000 Tcwer   1973 Ta(I Ave   col San Andres Sl  .  Malal8.  Manila  Philipoines  1004

Tel   No_s   02 354  7454   I   02 994  3984   I   Fax`  02353 8367



PEREZ. SESE, VILLA &  Co.
CERTIFIED  PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITol}S
0N SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEI)ULES

To The Board Of Directors
NEGOSYONG PINOY OVENTURE SOUTII) FINANCE CORPORATION
6th floor, New Semicon Building
Marcos Highway, Brgy. Dela Paz
Pasig City

We   have   audited   the   financial   statements   of  NEGOSYONG   PINOY   OVENTURE   SOUTH)
FINANCE CORPORATION as  at and for the years ended December 31,  2017  in accordance with
Philippine Standards  on Auditing on which we have rendered an unqualified opinion dated April  10,
2018.   Our  audit  was  conducted   for  the  purpose   of  forming  an   opinion  on  the   basic  financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information on ratio or percentage of total real estate
investment to total  assets, total  receivables to  total  assets;  total  DORSI receivable to  net  worth and
amount of receivable from single corporation to total  receivables and the accompanying schedule of
the  list  of the  standards  adopted  by  NEGOSYONG  PINOY  (VENTURE  SOUTH)  FINANCH
CORPORATION as a[ December 31, 2017, as I.equired by the Securities and Exchange Commission
under the  SRC Rule 68,  as Amended,  are  presented for purpose of additional  analysis and  are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information are the responsibility of management
and  have  been  subjected  to  the  auditir)g  procedures  applied  in  our  audits  of the  basic  financial
statements  and,   in  our  opinion,   are  fairly  stated  in  all  material  respects  in  relation  to  the  basic
financial statements taken as a whole.

PEREZ, SESE, VILLA & CO.
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0222, Issued September 18, 2017

Valid until August 20, 2020
SEC A.N. (Firm) 0336-F, Group 8 Category, Issued January 19, 2017

Valid until January  19, 2020
IC A.N. Q7irm) F-2017/008-R, Issued August 30, 2017

Valid until August 29, 2020

For the Fit.in:
.---,.,         `.

TIN 212-955-173-000
PTR No. 7010225

Issued on January  10, 201 8
SEC A.N.  (Individual)  1606-A, Group 8 Categor)r, Issued January  19, 2017

Valid until January 19, 2020
BIR No. 06-002735-001-2017, Issued January 04, 20 I 8

Valid until January 03, 2021
IC A.N. Ondividual) SP-2017/009-R, Issued August 30, 2017

Valid until August 29, 2020

Manila,  Philippines
April  10, 2018

3{ri Floor Unil  C Marc 2000 Tavier,1973 TaftAve   col San Andres  St .  Mala`e.  Manila Philippines  1 cO4

Tel   Mos   02354  7454    I   02994  3984   I   Fax-02353.8367



PEREZ, SESE, VILLA & Co.
CERTIFIED  PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors
NEGOSYONG PINOY (VENTURE SOUTH) FINANCE CORPORATION
6th floor, New Semicon Building
Marcos Highway9 Brgy. Dela Paz
Pasig City

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of NEGOSYONG PINOY (VEr`ITURE SOUTID
FINANCE  CORPORATION  (the  Company),  which  comprise  the  statements  of financial
position  as  at  December  31,  2017  and  2016,  and  the  statements  of comprehensive  income,
statements  of changes  in  equity and  statements  of cash  flows for the years then  ended,  and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

in  our opinion,  the accompanying financial  statements  present fairly,  in  all  material  respects,
the  financial  position  of the  Company  as  at  December 31,  2017  and  2016.  and  its  financial

performance  and  its  cash  flows  for  the  years  then  ended  in  accordance  with  Philippine
Financial Repcirting Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We  conducted  our  audits  in  accordance  with  Philippine  Standards  on  Auditing  O'SAs).  Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the j4c/dj./ors ' jzesj7oHsj.bz./i-/I.e5/o7.
the  Audit  Of the  Financial  Statements  section  of  our  report.    We  are  independent  o€ the
Company   in   accordance  with  the   Code   of  Ethics   for   Professional   Accountants   in   the
Philippines  (Code  of Ethics)  together  with  the  ethical  requirements  that  are  relevant  to  our
audit  of the  flnancial  statements  in  the  Philippines,  and  we  have  fulfilled  our  other  ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these req`iirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the  audit  evidence  we  have  obtained  is  sufficient  and  appropriate  to  provide  a  basis  for  our
opinion.

Responsibil`it.les  of Management  and  Tliose  Charged with  Governance for  the  Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to  enable  the  preparation  ctf  financial  statements  that  are  free  from  material  misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
ability to continue as going concern, disclosing, as applicable, mattersrelated t
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management ei
the Company or cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to d

Those  charged  with  governance  are   responsible   for  overseeing  the
reporting process.

9ln  Floor Unit  C Itfarc 2000 Tower.1973 Tall Ave. col San Andres Sl„  Malale.  Manila  Phillppines  lonl

lel_  No s   02 354  7454   I   o2.994  3984   I   Fax   o2353  8367



Auditor' s Respoi'istbtlities for t]ie Audit Of t]ie Firianalal Statemetits

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assui.ance about whether the financial statements as a
whole  are  free  from  material  misstatement,  whether  due  to  fraud  or  error,  and  to  issue  an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Re_asonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a
material  misstatement  when  it  exists.  h4isstatements  can  arise  from  fraud  or  error  and  are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

•       Identify  and  assess  the  risks  of material  misstatement   of the  financial  statements,
whether  due  to  fraud  or  error,  design  and perfom  audit procedures  responsive  to
those risks,  and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud  is  higher than  for  one  resulting  from  error,  as  fraud  may  involve  collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the  audit in order to  design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

Evaluate the  appropriateness  of accounting policies used  and the reasonableness  of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•       Conclude on the appropriateness ofmanagement's use of the going concern basis of
accounting, and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists  related  to   events   or   conditions  that  may   cast  significant   doubt  on  the
Company's  ability to  continue  as  a  going  concern.  If we  conclude  that  a material
uncertainty  exists,  we  are required to  draw  attention  in  our  auditor's  report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•       Evaluate the  overall presentation,  structure  and  content of the financial  statements,
including   the   disclosures,   and   whether   the   financial   statements   represent   the
underlying transactions and events ill a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We  communicate  with those  charged with  governance  regarding,  among  other  matters,  the
planed scope and timing of the audit and significant andit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Our  audits  were  conducted  for  the  purpose  of foming  an  opinion  on  the  basic
statements taken as a whole.  The supplementary information for the year
2016  required  by the  Bureau  of htemal Revenue  as  disclosed
statements is presented for purposes  of additional analysis  and  i
basic fmancial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS. Such
is the responsibility of management.  The supplementary infomatio
anditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statem
fairly  stated  in  all material  respects  in relation to  the  basic  finani
whole.



PEREZ, SESE, VILLA & CO.
BOA/PRC Reg. No. 0222, Issued September 18, 2017

Valid until August 20, 2020
SEC A.N. a]im) 0336-F, Group 8 Category, Issued January 19, 2017

Valid until January 19, 2020
IC A.N. (Firm) F-2017/008-R, Issued August 30j 2017

Valid until August 29, 2020

For tl3e Firm:

C2-
rEzfz7_. ALRA C.

PARTNER
CPA Cert. No. 54588
TIN 212-955-173-000
PTRNo. 7010225

Issued on January 10, 2018
SE%a4j.ri;Tfl9jv;[i::u;:};)1196,0266;aGroupBcategory,IssuedJanuaryig,2oi7

BRNo.06-002-7,35-001-2017,IssuedJanuary04,2018
Valid until January 03, 2021

IC A.N. (Individu-al) SP-2017/009-R, Issued August 30, 2017
Valid until August 29, 2020

u Manila, Philippines
April 10, 2018
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NEGOSYONG PINOY (VENTURE SOUTH) FI •    ,       5   i  e  .]i  .  ,¢.1  --   .   . .

STATEMENTS 0F FINANCIAL POSITION C
December 31, 2017and 2016 itTr\     APRtq?iA,          in-L

D
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ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash
Loans receivable
Other receivab le
Short term investment
Due from related parties
Prepayments

4,6      P          39,402,128
4,5.7               T94,]71,]61
4,8
4,/0
4,28
4,9

1'820,205
176,037,124
2;S¢JS.96rl

1,883£87

P          74,375,485
163,889,177

L47.901

14,047,824
2,3 85,631

Total current Assets                                                             442,196,572                 254,846,018

Non-Current Assets
Long term investment
Investment prop erty
Property and equipment, net
Deferred tax assets
Other non-current assets

4, /0                                                                238,192,209
4, J-, J /                   10,046,069

4,j-, /2,22                1,430,095
4, i,27                14,452,658
4.13                           1SS,680

9,846,069
2,825,337

I 4,172,420
470,816

Total Non-Current Assets                                                      26,684,502                 265,506,851

TOTALASSETS                                                                          P        468,881,074       P       520,352,869

LIABILITIES AND EQurrv

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Loans payab le-current
Due to related parties

4,/4     P            3,482216       P           4,072,684
4, /i                 33S,739,970                  333,154,688
4,28                    71,638,740                     3 8,680,973

Total current Liabilities                                                      410,860,926                 375,908,345

Non-Cu ri.ent Liability
Loans payable non-current
Accrued retirement liability

4, /J-                                                              88,228,740
4, /6                       3,161,139                        2,496,733

Total  Non-Current Liabilities                                                3,161,139                    90,725,473

Equity
Share Capital
Accumu lated deficit

4, / 7                    80,200,000                     80,200,000
4                      (2S,340,991)                 (26,480,949)

Equity, net                                                                                         54.8S9,009                     53,719,051



NEGOSYONG PINOY (VENTURE SOUTH) FINANCE CORPORATION
sTATEMENTs OF cormREHENslvE INcOME
For The Years Ended December 31, 2017and 2016

IVofes                    2017                                2016

REVENUE 4,/8    P         45,605,869        P       54,216,016

DmECT cOsT                                                                       4, /9               27,909£04               34,267,1 13

GRoss INconm                                                                                        17,696,665               ig,948,9o3

OPERATING EXPENSES                                                    4, 2 0               17,155,829                17,3 29,43 2

ENCORE FROM OPERATION                                                                      540,836                  2,619,471

OTHER INcOME aioss)                                                 4,26                   717,942                   (8 19,022)

INcon4E BEFORE INconm TAX

INCOME TAX ExpENSE
Curent
Deferred

1,258,778                     1,800,449

(4,115,983)                 (3 ,43 7, 077)
4,23 4,803                    3 , 640,43 4

118,820                         203,357

NET INconm FOR TEE WEAR

OTRER coMPREHENslvE INconm                        4

1,139,958                     1, 597,092

TOTAL conffREHENslvE INconm                                   p         1,139,958      p        1,597,og2

(See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements)



NEGOSYONG PINOY (VENTURE SOUTH) FINANCE CORPORATION
STATEMENTS 0F CIIANGES IN  EQUITY
For The Years Ended December 31, 2017and 2016

2017                                 2016

SHARE CAPITAL                                                   4,J7    P         80200,000      P        80,200,000

AC CUMULATED DEFICIT
Balance beginning of the year
Dividends
Total comprehensive income

(26,480,949)

1,139,958

(24,827,752)
(3,250,289)
1,597,092

Balance end of the year                                                                (25,3 40,991)              (26,48 0,949)

EQUITY, NET OF DEFICIT                                           P         54,859,009      P        53,719,051

(See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements)
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NFGOsyoNG pINoy (vnNTURE sOuTH) FINANCE cORpORATION
STATERENTS 0F CASH FLOWS
For The Years Ended December 31, 2017and 2016

es                    2ol7                              2016

CASH FLOWS FROM 0PFRATING ACTIVITIES
Net income before income tax
Adjustment to reconcile net income to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Retirement benefits
Depreciation
Derecognition of transportation equipment
Interest hcome

4,16
4,5,12,22
4,5,12,22

4,26

P              1,258,778      P           I,800,449

664'406
1,130'069

964,378
(1,468,448)

607,612
1,466,573

(1,893,055)
Operating income before changes in worldng capital

Decerease (Increase) in:
Loans receivable
Other receivat]les
Short tern investment
Due from related parties
Prepayments
Other non current assets

Increase a)ecrease) in:
Trade and other payables 4,j4

2,549,183

(30,888,584)
(1,672,304)

(176,037,124)
(14,228,143)

502,244
(284,864)

(590,468)

1,981,579

(31,599,428)
31,946

(14,047,824)
(1,160,699)

70,413

1,645,366
Cash used in operating activities (220,650,060)              (43 ,07 8,647)

Income tax paid                                                               4,27                        (399,058)                (2,655,413)
Interest received                                                                4, 26                      1,468,448                    1, 893 ,0 5 5

Net cash used in operating activities                                                    (219,580,670) (43,841,005)

CASH FLOWS  FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additional long term investment                                   4, I 0                23 8,192 ,209
Real and other properties acquired                              4,i, JJ                     (200,000)
Acquisitions of property and equipment                 4, i, J2, 22                  (699,205)

(105,270,156)
(7,998,989)
(1,827,189)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities                             237,293,004             (115 ,09 6,3 3 4)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advances from shareholders
Advances from affiliate
Proceeds on loans
Payment of loans
Dividends payment
Payment to related parties
Proceeds from issuance of share capital

4,28                       2,558,500                 34,500,973
4, 28                   69,080,240
4, /5                 210,651,021
4,,5

4
4,28
4,J7

(296,294,479)

(38,680,973)

179,391,512

(41,914,582)
(3,250,289)

8,000,000
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities                            (52,685,691)             176,727,614

NET INCREASE @ECREASE) IN CASH                                        (34,973,357)              17,790,275

CASH AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR                   4, 6                   74,375,485               56,585.210

CASHATEND OFTHBYEAR                                               P          39,402,128     P       74,375,485

(See accompanying Notes to Financial Statemevis)



NEGOSYONG PINOY (VENTURE SOUTH) FINANCE CORPORATION
NOTES T0 FINANCIAL STATERENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016

NOTE 1 -   GENERAL INFORIVIATION

NEGOSYONG PINOY FINANCE CORPORATION (the Company) is a corporation registered
with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission under registration number CS201102891
dated March 18, 2011. The Company is established prinarily to carry on the business of extending
credit facilities to  consumers  and to  industrial,  commercial  or  agricultural  enterprises  by  direct
lending or by discounting or factoring commercial papers or account receivable or by buying and
selling  contracts,  leases,  chattel  mortgage  or  other  evidence  of indebtedness,  or  by  financial
leasing of movable as well as immovable property.

The Company's secondary license was issued on March 18, 2012 with Certificate of Registration
No 1028. Under its secondary license, the Company is authorized to operate as financing company
in  accordance  with the  rules  and regulation  implementing the  provision  of RA No.  8556  (The
Financing Company Act of 1998).

Venture South htemational (VSI) of Geneva, Switzerland, a foreign corporation has 60% voting
privilege.

The Company's main office address and place of business  is located at 6th Floor, New Semicon
Building, Marcos Highway, Barangay Dela Paz, Pasig City. It has a branch office located at 5''` Flr.
Krizia Bldg. Gorordo Avenue, Cebu.

Api)roval Of the Financial Statements

The flnancial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2017 were approved
and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on April 10, 2018.

NOTE 2 -  FINANclAL REpoRTING FRAMEwoRK Ar`n] BAsls oF pREPARATloN
AND PRESENTATION

Statei'ruent of Com|)lince

The  financial  statements  of the  company  have  been  prepared  in  accordance  with  Philippine
Financial   Reporting   Standards   (PFRS),   which   includes   all   applicable   PFRS,   Philippine
Accounting Standards a'AS), and interpretations issued by the International Financial Repolting
Intexpretations  Committee  qFRIC),  Philippine  Interpretations  Committee  Q'IC)  and  Standing
Interpretations  Committee  (SIC)  as  approved  by  the  Financial  Reporting  Standards  Council
(FRSC) and Board Of Accountancy a30A) and adopted by the SEC.

These financial statements are the Company's separate financial statements. The Company does
not have any other subsidiary nor a parent or ultimate parent company.

Basis Of Prep ardion

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on the historical cost basis unless
otherwise indicated.

Historical  cost  is  generally  based  on the fair value  of the  consideration  given  in  exchange  for
goods and services.



NEGOSYONG PINOY OVENTURE SOUTH) FINANCE CORI'ORATION
Notes to Financial Stateme:nts

Page 2 Of 45

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assct or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants  at the measurement date, regardless  of whether
ththat price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.   In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset
or liability if market participants would take those characteristics  into  account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and / or disclosure purposes
in these  consolidated financial statement is  determined  on such  a basis,  except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of PFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the
scope  of PAS  17,  and measurements that have  some  similarities  to  fair value  but  are  not  fair
value, such as net realizable value in PAS 2 or value in use in FAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level
1, 2 or 3  based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety; which is described
as fonous:

•     Level  1  inputs  are  quoted prices  (una4justed)  in active  markets  for identical  assets  or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

•     Level  2  inputs  are  inputs,  other than  quoted  prices  included  within  Level  1,  that  are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

•     Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs the asset or liability.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The  financial  statements  are  presented  in  Philippine peso,  which  is  the  Company's  functional
curreney.  All financial information presented has been rounded off to the nearest peso, except when
otherwise stated.

NOTE 3 -   ADOpTION OF r`min7 AND REvlsnD AccOuNTING sTANDARDs

AdoDtion of New and Amended PFRS

The accounting policies  adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year,  except
for the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Company adopted effective
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017:

•      ALmendmenJ,s to PALS 7, Statement  Of Cash Flows  -Disclosure  Initiative -The zLmendmeuls
require entities to provide information that enable the users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

•     AL"endmerds to PA;S T2, Income Taxes -Recognition Of Deferred Tan Assets for Unrealized
ZosFeu - The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax where an asset is measured
at fair value and the fair value is below the asset's tax base (e.g. deferred tax assct related to
unrealized losses on debt instruments measured at fair value), as well as certain other aspects
of accounting for deferred tax assets.

•      ALmendm!er[ts to PFTts  L2,,  Disclosures  Of Interests  in  Other  Entities  - Clarification  Of the
Slc;ape  o/ £7ze  S#ciraczavtd - The  amendments  are  part  of the  Amual  Improvements  to  PFRS
2014-2016 Cycle and clarify that the disclosure requirements in PFRS  12 apply to interests in
er[diles within the  scope  o£ P'FRS  5,  Non-current Assets  Held fior  Sale  and Discontinued
Qpe7.a#ous  except for  summarized financial  information for those interests  (i.e.  paragraphs
810-816 ofpFRS  12).

The adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS  did not have  any material effect on the
financial   statements.     Additional   disclosures  have  been  included   in  the  notes   to   financial
statements, as applical>le.
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New and Amended PFRS in Issue But Not Yet Effective

Relevant new and amended PFRS wliich are not yet effective for the year ending December 31,
2017 and have not been applied in preparing the financial statements are summarized below.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018:

•       PFRS  9,  Ff7zci7zcjciiJ J}zsi#.z#7cer!£s  -  This  standard  will replace  PAS 39,  Ffr2cz7icjczJ J}7£givzi77ze79£r..

jiecog7?fffo#   c}7ad  Adec2sz#.e#ze72r   (and   all   the   previous   versions   of  PFRS 9).   It   contains
requirements   for  the   classification   and  measurement   of  financial   assets   and   financial
liabilities, inpaiment, hedge accounting, recognition and derecognition.

o     PFRS 9 requires all recognized financial assets to be subsequently measured at anortized
cost  or  fair  value  (through  profit  or  loss  or  through  other  comprehensive  income),
depending on the classification by reference to the business model within which these are
held and its contractual cach flow characteristics.

o     For financial liabilities, the most significant effect of PFRS 9 relates to cases where the
fair  value  option  is  taken:  the  anount  of change  in  fair  value  of a  financial  liability
designated as at fair value through profit or loss that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that lial]ility is recognized in other comprehensive income (rather than in profit or
loss), unless this creates an accounting mismatch.

o    For the impaiment offinancial assets, PFRS 9 introduces an "expected credit loss" model
based  on  the  concept  of  providing  for  expected  losses  at  inception  of  a  contract;
recognition of a credit loss  should no longer wait for there to be  objective evidence of
inpairment.

o     For  hedge   accounting,  PFRS 9   introduces  a  substantial  overhaul  allowing  financial
statements to better reflect how risk management activities are undertaken when hedging
financial and non-financial risk exp osures.

o     The derecognition provisions are carried over almost unchanged from PAS 39.

The Company has perfomed a preliminary assessment of the impact ofpFRS 9 on the financial statements
based on an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities and the facts and circumstances that exist as at
I-31,2017.
•     All the financial  assets  and financial  lial)ilities  except for available-for-sale finanofal assets

should continue to be measured on the same bases as currently under PAS 39.

•     Concerning inpairment, the Company expects to apply the simplified approach to recognize
lifetime expected credit loss for the Company's trade receivables. Although the Company is
ourrently  assessing  the  extent  of this  impact,  it  is  anticipated  that  the  application  of the
expected  credit  loss  model  of PFRS  9  will  result  in  earlier  recognition  of credit  losses.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate Of that effect until the detailed
review that is in progress has been completed. h partioular, the inplementation of the new
expected   credit   loss   model   proves   to   be   challenging   and   might   involve   significantt
modifications to the Company's credit management systems.

•     The company is currently assessing the extent of the impact of the expected credit loss model
on its Financial Position. However, it is not practicable to provide reasonable estimate of that
effect until a detailed review that is in progress has been completed.

•     As the new hedge accounting requirements will align more closely with the Company's risk
management   policies,   a   prelininary   assessment   Of   the   Company's   current   hedging



NEGOsyoNG plNoy ryENTURE sOuTH) FINANCE cORpORArloN
Notes to Fiiraitcial Statemei.ts

Page 4 Of 45

relationships   indicate  that  these   will   qualify   as   continuing  hedging  relationships   upon
application of PFRS 9. The Company does not anticipate that the application of the PFRS 9
hedge accounting requirements will have a material impact on the financial statements.

•     Arnend"enks to FIRS 2., Share-based Payment -Classification and Measurement Of Share-
basec7 PcD/me77f rrcr#scrcfj.o#s -The amendments clarify the effects of vesting and non-vesting
conditions   on   the   measurement   of  cash-settled   share-based   payment   transactions,   the
accounting for share-based payment transactions with a net settlement feature for withholding
tax obligations, and the effect of a modification to the terms and condition of a share-based
payment that changes the classification of the transaction from cash-settled to equity settled.

•     Am:end"errts to FTRIS 4, I:nsurance contracts -Applying PFRS 9, Financial Instruments with
PEES 4, J#sz/revzce Co7ztrczcrs - The amendments give all insurers the option to recognize in
other comprehensive income,  rather than profit or loss, the volatility that could  arise when
PFRS   9   is   applied   before   implementing   PFRS    17,   J77sgAVcz7?ce   Co7?givc7c/a   (`the   overlay
approach').  Also,  entities  whose  activities  are predominantly  connected with  insurance  are
given an optional temporary exemption (until 2021) from applying PFRS  9, thus continuing
to apply PAS 39 instead (`the deferral approach').

•      PFRS   15,  jzeve7?z/e ¢oj7c  Co7?trc7cf  w#7!  Casro7#e7i5'  -The  new  standard  replaces  PAS   11,
Co77Jf7ifcf!.o7g  Co77givacts,  PAS  18,  jzeve7€z{e  and related  interpretations.  It  establishes  a  single
comprehensive framework for revenue recognition to apply consistently across transactions,
industries and capital markets, with a core principle (based on a five-step model to be applied
to  all  contracts with customers),  enhanced disclosures,  and new or improved guidance (e.g.
the  point  at  which  revenue  is  recognized,  accounting  for variable  considerations,  costs  of
fulfilling and obtaining a contract, etc.).

•     Am!eniha:eattopF:Frs 15, Revenue f ram contract with customers -Clarif ication to PFRS 15 -
The amendments provide clarifications on the following topics:  (a) identifying perfomance
obligations; ® principal versus agent Considerations; and (c) licensing. The amendments also
provide some transition relief for modified contracts and completed contracts.

•     AL"endments  to  PA:S  28>  Investments  in  Associates  and  Joint  Ventures  -  Measuring  an
-4s5ocz.c7fe   or  LJo!.73f   ye)?give   crf  Fczz.r   7raJ2/e  -  The   amendments   are  part   of  the  Annual
Improvements to PFRS 2014-2016 Cycle and clarify that the election to measure at fair value
through profit or loss an investment in an associate or ajoint venture that is held by an entity
that  is  a venture  capital  organization,  mutual  fund,  unit trust  or other  qualifying  entity,  is
available for each investment in an associate or joint venture on an investment-by-investment
basis, upon initial recognition.

•     Am!endrryeats to PA;S  40,  Irrvestment  Praperty  -  Tranrfers  Of lnNestment  Property  -The
amendments  clarify that transfers to,  or from,  investment property  (including  assets  under
construction and development) should be made when, and only when, there is evidence that a
change in use of a property has occurred.

•      Philippine    Interpretation    lfRIC     22,    Forez.gr     Caf77.e79ey     rra7!scrc/jo77f    c773c7    ,4c7vcz72ce
Co#sz.deraf!.o72 - The interpretation provides guidance clarifying that the exchange rate to use
in transactions that involve advance consideration paid or received in a foreign cuITency is the
one at the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary prepayment asset or deferred income
liability.

I
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Effective for armual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019:

•     PFRS 16, £ecises -This standard replaces PAS  17, Leases and its related interpretations. The
most  significant  change  introduced  by  the  new  standard  is  that  almost  all  leases  will  be
brought onto  lessees'  statement of financial position under a single model (except leases of
less  than  12  months  and  leases  of low-value  assets)  eliminating  the  distinction  between
operating and finance leases. Lessor accounting, however, remains largely unchanged and the
distinction between operating and finance lease is retained.

•     For the Company's non-cancellable operating lease commitments as at December 31, 2017, a

preliniinary assessment indicates that these aITangements will continue to meet the definition
of a lease under PFRS  16. Thus, the Company will have to recognise a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases - unless these qualify for low value or
short-tern leases upon the application of PFRS 16 -which might have a significant impact on
the amounts recognised in the Company's financial statements. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until the Company complete the review.

Defer effectivfty -

•     Amend"erit to PFRS  \0,  Consolidated  Financial  Statements  and PALS  28, Investments  in
Associates  and Joint Ve:i'itures -  Sale or Contribution Of Assets  Between an lmestor c[nd its
j4s'£ocidfe  or Joj7zf  7re7zfe#+e  -  The  amendments  address  a  current  conflict  between  the  two
standards  and  clarify  that  a  gain  or  loss  should  be  recognized  fully when  the  transaction
involves  a business,  and partially if it involves assets that do not constitute a business. The
effective  date  of the  amendments,  initially  set  for  annual  periods  begiming  on  or  after
January  1,  2016,  was  deferred  indefinitely in December 2015  but earlier  application is  still
permitted.

Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS is not
expected to have any material effect on the finaneial statements of the Company except for PFRS
9 and  16.

NOTE 4 -   surm¢AR¥ oF slGNITlcANT AccouNTING poLlcms

The  significant  accounting  policies  that  have  been  used  in  the  preparation  of these  financial
statements are summarized below.   These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

Financial Instruments

Initial reco ndon

Financial  assets  are  recognized  in  the  Conipanyis  financial  statements  when  the  Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.   Financial assets are recognized
initially at fair value.  Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the Company's
financial assets, except for investments classified at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Classification and Subsequent Measurement

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets at FVTPL,
held-to-maturity  investments  urTho,  available-for~sale  (AFS)  financial  assets  and  loans  and
receivatles.   The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.  All regular way purchases or sales Of financial assetss
are  recognized  and  derecognized  on  a  trade  date  basis.  Regular  way  purchases  or  sales  are
purchases  or  sales  of  financial  assets  that  require  delivery  of  assets  within  the  time  frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Financial assets at FVTPL

The Company classifies financial assets as at FVTPL when the finanofal asset is held for trading;
designated upon initial recognition; either held for trading or designated upon initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

•     it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it inthe neartem; or
•     on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio  of identified financial instruments that the

Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-tern profit-taking; or
•     it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recogriition if:

•     such   designation  elininates   or  significantly  reduces   a  measurement  or  recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

•     the financial  asset  forms  part  of Company  of financial  assets  or  financial  liabilities  or
both,  which  is  managed  and  its  performance  is  evaluated  on  a  fair  value  basis,  in
accordance  with the  Company's  documented  risk management  or investment  strategy,
and information about the Company is provided intemally on that basis; or

•     it forms  part  of a  contract containing one or more  embedded  derivatives,  and FAS  39
Financial   Instruments..   Recognition   and  Measurement  perrnds  ale   entire  comtoined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial  assets  at  FVTPL  are  stated  at  fair  value,  with  any  gains  or  losses  arising  on  re
measurement  recognized  in  profit  or  loss.  The  net  gain  or  loss  recognized  in  profit  or  loss
incorporates  any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is  included in the  `other
gains  and  los§es'   line  item  in  the  consolidated  statement  of  comprehensive  income/income
statement.

As of the reporting date, the Company does not have financial assets that are designated at fair
value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans  and receivables  are non-derivative financial  assets with fixed  or deteminable  payments
that  are  not  quoted  in  an  active  market.    After  initial  recognition,  loans  and  receivables  are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impalrment
and are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.   The effective interest rate is the rate
that  exactly  discounts  estimated  future  cash  receipts  through  the  expected  life  of  the  debt
instnment  or,   when  appropriate,   a  shorter  period,   to  the  net  carrying  amount  on   initial
recognition.

Interest  income  is  recognized  by  applying  the  effective  interest  rate,  except  for  short-term
receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

The  Company's  financial  assets  classified  under  this  category  include  cash  and  sliort  term
investment, loans receivables, other receivables, rental deposits and miscellaneous deposits.
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HIM imestments

HTM  investments  are non-derivative  financial  assets with fKed  or determinable  payments  and
fixed  maturity  dates  that the  Company bas  the  positive  intent  and  ability to  hold to  maturity.
Subsequent to  initial  recognition,  HTM  investments  are  measured  at  amortized  cost using the
effective  interest  method  less  any  impairment,  with  revenue  recognized  on  an  effective  yield
basis.

As of the reporting date, the Company does not have financial assets that are classified as held-to-
maturity investments.

AFS f inancial assets

AFS  financial  assets  are  non-derivative  financial  assets that  are  designated  as AFS  or  are  not
classified as loans and receivables, HIM investments or financial assets at FVTPL.

Listed redeemable notes held by the Company that are traded in an active market are classified as
AFS and are stated at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The Company has also has
investments in unlisted shares that are not traded in an active market but that are also classified as
AFS flnanoial assets and stated at fair value at the end of each reporting period.  Changes in the
carrying amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to changes in foreign currency rates,
interest  income  calculated  using  the  effective  interest  method  and  dividends  on  AFS  equity
investments  are  recognized  in  profit  or  loss.  Other  changes  in  the  canying  amount  of AFS
financial  assets  are  recognized  in  other  comprehensive  income  and  accumulated  under  the
heading of investment revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is detemined to
be  impaired,  the  cumulative  gain or loss previously accumulated  in the investhent revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

The fair value of AFS monetary financial assets denominated in a foreign cunency is detemined
in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
The foreign exchange gains and losses that are recognized in profit or loss are determined based
on  the  amortized  cost  of the  monetary  asset.  Other  foreign  exchange  gains  and  losses  are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value  cannot be  reliably  measured  and  derivatives  that  are  linked  to  and  must  be  settled  by
delivery of such unquoted equity investments are measured at cost less any identified impaiment
losses at the end of each reporting period.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss when the Company's right
to receive the dividends is established.

AFS  assets  are  included  in  non-current  assets  unless  the  investment  matures  or  management
intends to dispose it within 12 months after the end of the reporting period

As  of the  reporting  date,  the  Company  does  not  have  financial  assets  that  are  classified  as
available-for-sale financial assets.

Impairment If f irancial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as  a result of one or more events that occured after the initial recognition of the
fmancial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected.
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For AFS  equity investments,  a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impaiment could include:

•     significant financial diffioulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
•     breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
•     it becoming probable that the bolTower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organization;

Or
•     the  disappearance  of  an  active  market  for  that  financial  asset  because  of  financial

difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as loans receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impaiment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence   of  impairment  for  a  portfolio   of  receivables   could   include  the   Company's  past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of six months  days,  as well as observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impaiment loss recognized is the
difference  between  the  asset's  carrying  amount  and  the present value  of estimated  future  cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

For  financial  assets  carried  at  cost,  the  amount  of the  impainent  loss  is  measured  as  the
difference between the asset's caITying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar fmancial asset. Such impalrment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The  caITying  amount  of the  financial  asset  is  reduced  by the  impairment  loss  directly  for  all
financial  assets  with the  exception  of trade receivables,  where the  carrying amount is  reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account.  Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the canying amount of the allowance
account are recognized in profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial  assets  measured  at  amortized  cost,  if,  in  a subsequent period,  the  amount  of the
impaiment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the  impaiment was  recognized, the previously recognized inpaiment loss  is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the caITying amount of the investment at the date the impalrment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the impaiment not been
recognized.

In respect of AFS equity securities, inpaiment losses previously recognized in profit or loss are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an inpairment loss is
recognized  in  other  comprehensive  income  and  accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation  reserve.  In  respect  of  AFS   debt  securities,  impaiment  losses  are  subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impaiment loss.

Derecognition Of f inc[i'icial asscts

The Company derecognizes financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire,  or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risk and rewards of

I
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ownership of the asset to another party. If the      mpany neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
ppay. If the Company retains  substantially all the risk and rewards  of ownership of a transferred
financial  asset,  the  Company  continues  to  recognize  the  financial  asset  and  also  recognizes  a
collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On  derecognition  of financial  asset  in  its  entirety,  the  difference  between the  asset's  carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
ththat had been recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized
in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an
option to  repurchase  part  of a transfened  asset),  the  Company  allocates  the previous  carrying
amount  of the  financial  asset  between  the  part  it  continues  to  recognize  under  continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognizes on the basis of the relative fair values of those
pparts on the date of the transfer.  The diffdence between the carrying amount allocated to the part
thhat  is  no  longer recognized  and the  sum of the  consideration  received  for the  part no  longer
rrecognized  and  any  cumulative  gain  or  loss  allocated to  it that had  been  recognized  in  other
comprehensive income is recognized in profit or loss.   A cumulative gain or loss that had been
rrecognized  in  other  comprehensive  income  is  allocated  between  the  part that  continues  to  be
rrecognized and the part that is no longer recognized on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

Financial Liabilities and Equity Instrupeents

Classification as Debt or Eauitv

Debt  and  equity  instruments  issued  by  a  Company  entity  are  classified  as  either  financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance Of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial Liatilities

Initial recognition

Financial  liabilities  are  recognized  in  the  Company's  financial  statements  when  the  Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.   Financial liabilities are initially
recognized  at  fair  value.     Transaction  costs  are  included  in  the  initial  measurement  of the
Company's financial liabilities except for debt instruments classified at FVTPL.  In a regular way
purchase  or  sale,  financial  liabilities  are  recognized  and  derecognized,   as   applicable,  using
settlement date accounting.

Financial  liabilities  are  classified  as  either  financial  liabilities  at  FVTPL  or  other  financial
liabilities.

Classification and Subsea_uent Measurement

Financial  liabilities  are  classified  as  either  financial  liabilities  `at  FVTPL'  or  `other  financial
liabilities'.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial  liabilities  are  classified  at  FVTPL  when  the  financial  liability  is  held  for  trading;
designated upon initial recognition; either held for trading or designated upon initial recognition.
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A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

•     ithas been acquired principally forthe purpose ofrepurchasing it in the near tern; or
•     on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the

Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
•     it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A  financial  liability  other  than  a  financial  liability  held  for  trading  may  be  designated  as  at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

•      such   designation   eliminates   or   significantly  reduces   a  measurement   or  recognition
inconsisteney that would otherwise arise; or

•     the financial liability foms part of an Company of financial assets or financial liabilities
or  both,  which  is  managed  and  its  performance  is  evaluated  on  a  fair value  basis,  in
accordance  with  the  Company's  documented risk management  or  investment  strategy,
and information about the Company is provided intemally on that basis; or

•     it foms  part of a  contract containing  one  or more  embedded  derivatives,  and PAS  39
Financial   Instruments:   Recognition   and  Mieasurement  permits  th!e   entire   Combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial  liabilities  at  FVTPL  are  stated  at  fair  value,  with  any  gains  or  losses  arising  on
remeasurement recognized  in  profit  or  loss.  The  net  gain  or  loss  recognized  in  profit  or  loss
incorporates  any  interest paid  on the  financial  liability  and  is  included  in the  `other gains  and
losses'  line  item  in  the  statement  of comprehensive  income.  Fair  value  is  determined  in  the
manner described in notes.

Otherfinancialliabilities

Other  financial  liabilities  (including  borrowings)  are  subsequently  measured  at  amortized  cost
using the effective interest method. Trade and other payables and loans payable are classified as
other financial liabilities.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that  exactly  discounts  estimated  future  cash  payments  (including  all  fees  and  points  paid  or
received  that  fom  an  integral  pat  of the  effective  interest  rate,  transaction  costs  and  other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate)
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Of fsctting f irancial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statements of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability sinultaneously.

A right to  offset must be available today rather being contigent on a future  event and must be
exercisable by any of the counterparties, both in the nomal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy.

Derecogl'iition Of f inancial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations
are  discharged,  cancelled  or  they  expire.  The  difference  between  the  carrying  amount  of the
financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit or
loss.
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Eauitv instruments

An equity instrument is  any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instnments issued by the Company are recognized at
ffair value of the consideration received, net of direct issue costs.

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.  Incremeutal costs directly attributat]le to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as. a deduction from the proceeds, net of tax.

Proference shares

Ppreference share capital is classified as equity if it is nonredeemable, or redeemable only at the
Companyis  option,  and  any  dividends  are  discretionary  dividends  thereon  are  recognized  as
distribution within equity upon approval by the Company's shareLolders.

Preference shares are classified as a financial liability if it is redeemable on a specific date or at
the option of the shareholders,  or if dividend payments are not discretionary. Non-discrctionary
dividends thereon are recognized as interest expense in profit or loss as accrued.

Retained earnings

Retained  earnings  represent  acoumulated profit  attributable  to  equity  holders  of the  Company
after  deducting  dividends  declared.    Retained  earnings  may  also  include  effect  of changes  in
accounting policy as may be required by the standard's transitional provisions.

Prepayme;ats

Prepayments  represent  expenses  not  yet  incumed  but  already  paid  in  cash.  Prepayments  are
initially recorded as  assets  and measured at the  amount of cash paid.    Subsequently,  these  are
charged to profit or loss as they are consumed in operations or expire with the passage of time.

Prepayments are classified in the statements of financial I)osition as current assets when the direct
cost related to the prepayments  are  expected to be  incurred within one year or the  Colnpany's
nomal operating cycle, whichever is longer. Otherwise, prepayments are classified as nonrourrent
assets.

Property and Equipment

Property  and  equipment  are  initially  measured  at  cost.    The  cost  of an  item  ctf property  and
equipment comprises:

•     its  purobase  price,  including  inport  duties  and  non-refundable  purchase  taxes,  after
deducting trade discounts and rebates;

•     any costs directly attriibutable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; and

•     the initial estimate of the future costs of dismautling and removing the item and restoring
the site on which it is located, the obligation for wliich an entity incurs either when the
item is acquired or as a consequence of having used the item during a particular period for
purposes other than to produce inventories during that period.

At the end of each reporting period, items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impainent losses.
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Depreciation is computed on the stralght-line method based on the estinated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Leasehold Improvement                                                  5 years
Office Furniture Fixtures and Equipment                   5 years

ortation E uipment                                              5 years

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits  are  expected to  arise from the continued use  of the  asset.   Gain  or loss  arising on the
disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the canying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

Itwestnent Property

Investment properties are real properties that are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
both but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods
or services  or for administrative pulposes.   Investment properties  are measured initially at cost,
including transaction costs.

Subsequent  to  initial  recognition,  investment  property  is  measured  at  cost  less  accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Land is not subject to depreciation

Properties that are in the  course of construction that are classified as  investment properties  are
carried  at  cost,  less  any  recognized  impairment  loss.  Cost  includes  professional  fees  and  for
qualifying assets, borrowing cost capitalized. Depreciation of these assets,  on the same basis  as
other investment properties, commences at the tine the assets are ready for their intended use.

Transfers to, or from, investment property shall be made only when there is a change in use.

Investment property is derecognized by the Company upctn its disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the caITying amount of the asset) is incrfuded in profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognized.

ImpaineutOfNon-fiunneialAssets

At  each  reporting  date,  property  and  equipment  and  investment  property  are  reviewed  to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an inpainent loss. If
there  is  an  indication  of possible impaiment, the recoverable amount of any affected asset (or
group  of  related  assets)  is  estimated  and  compared  with  its  canying  amount.  If  estimated
recoverable amount is lower, the canying amount is reduced to its estimated recoverable amount,
and an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit and loss.

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the canying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but not in excess of the amount that would have been
detemined had no impainent loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impaiment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

D erecogrtition Of Non-f inancirl Assets

Items  of property  and  equipment  and  investment  property  are  derecognized  upon  disposal  or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.  Galn
or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is detemined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.
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Related Parties

Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control,  directly, or indirectly
through  one  or more  intermediaries,  the  other party or  exercises  significant influence  over the
other party in making financial and operating decisions.    Such relationships also  exist between
and/or among entities which are under common control with the reporting enterprise, or between,
and/or  among  the  reporting  enterprise   and  its  key  management  personnel,   directors,   or  its
shareholders.   In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal fom.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be measured reliably.  Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents  amounts receivable for services rendered in
the normal course of business.

Interest Revenue

hterest  revenue  from  a  financial  asset  is  recognized  when  it  is  probable  that  the  economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
revenue is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective  interest rate  applical]le,  which  is the rate that  exactly  discounts  estimated  future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net caiTying amount.

Processing fees

Processing fees  are recognized when it is probable that the  economic benefits will flow to the
Company  and  the  amount  of income  can  be  measured  relial)ly.  Processing  fees  are  directly
ddeducted from the  proceeds  of approved  loans  and recognized  as revenue upon release  of the
loans.

Deferment fee income

Deiferment  fees  are  recognized  when  it  is  probable  that  the  economic  benefits  will  flow  the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably which coincides with the timing of
the collection.

Expense Recognition

Expenses are recognized in profit or loss when decrease in future economic benefit related to a
decrease  in  an  asset  or  an  increase  in  a  liability  has  arisen  that  can  be  measured  reliably.
Expenses are recognized in profit or loss:  on the basis  of a direct association between the costs
incurred  and  the  earning  of specific  items  of income;  on  the  basis  of systematic  and  rational
allocation  procedures  when  economic  benefits  are  expected  to  arise  over  several  accounting
periods  and  the   association  with  income  can  only  be  broadly  or  indirectly  determined;   or
immediately  when  an  expenditure  produces  no  future  economic  benefits  or when,  and  to  the
extent that,  future  economic benefits  do not qualify,  or cease to  qualify,  for recognition  in the
statements of financial position as an asset.

Expenses in the statement of comprehensive income are presented using the function of expense
method.    Direct  Cost  are  expenses  incurred  such  as  salaries,  interest  expense  and  any  other
expenses directly associated with the services rendered.   Operating expenses are costs attributable
to administrative, marketing, selling and other business activities of the Company.
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Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset to the lessee.

All other leases  are  classified as  operating  leases.  Rentals  payments under operating  leases  are
recognized in profit or loss on a straighiline basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Company as Lessee

Leases which transfer to the Company substantially all risks and benefits incidental to ownership
of the leased item are classified as finance leases and are recognized as assets and liabilities in the
statement of financial position at anounts equal at the inception of the lease to the fair value of
the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of mininum lease payments. Lease payments
are apportioned between the finance costs  and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a
constant  rate  of interest  on  the  remaining  balance  of the  liability.  Finance  costs  are  directly
charged against income. Capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated
useful life of the asset or the lease ten.

Leases which do not transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership
of the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as expense
in the  income  statement on  a straight-line basis  over the  lease term.  Associated  costs,  such  as
maintenance and insurance, are expensed as inourTed.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing  costs  that  are  directly  attributable to  the  acquisition,  constmction  or  production  of
qualifying assets are added to the cost of the assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,

Investment  income  earned  on  the  temporary  investment  of specific  borrowings  pending  their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incuned.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

In preparing the financial statements  of the  Company, transactions  in  cunencies  other than  the
entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign cunencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.  Resulting gain or loss are
reported  under  other  income  (loss)  and presented  in the  statements  of comprehensive  income.
Non-monetary   items   carried   at  fair  value  that  are   denominated   in   foreign   currencies   are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was detemined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which
they  arise except for exchange  differences  on monetary items receivable  from  or payable to  a
foreign operation for which settlement is neither planed nor likely to occur (therefore forming
part  of the  net  investment  in  the  foreign  operation),  which  are  recognized  initially  in  other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary
items.

I
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EmployeeBenefiits

Short-term B enefits

The  Company  recognizes  a  liability  net  of anounts  already paid  and  an  expense  for  services
rendered by employees during the accounting period that are expected to be settled wholly before
twelve months after the end of the reporting period.  A liability is also recognized for the amount
expected to  be paid under short-term  cash bonus  or profit sharing plans  if the Company has  a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by
the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Short-term  employee  benefits  are  recognized  as  expense  in  the  period  the  related  service  is
provided.

Retirement B enefits

The  Company  has  an  unfunded,  no-contributory  defined  benefit  plan  covering  all  qualified
employees. The retirement benefit cost is determined using the projected unit credit method which
reflects  services  rendered by  employees  to  the  date  of valuation and  incorporates  assumptions
concerning employees' proj ected salaries.

The Company recognized service cost, comprising of cunent service cost, past service cost, gains
and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and net interest expense in profit or loss.
Net interest expense is calculated by applying the discount rate to the retirement liability.

Past service cost are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan amendment
or curtailment; and the date that the Company recognizes restructuring-related cost.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any changes in
the  effect  of the  asset  ceiling  (excluding  net  interest  on  retirement  liability)  are  recognized
inmediately in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Retirement liability is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO)
and actuarial  gains and losses.  The present value of the DBO is  determined by discounting the
estimated  future  cash  outflows  using  interest  rate  on  government  bonds  that  have  terns  to
maturity approximating the terms of the related DBO.

Actuarial  valuations  are  made with sufficient regularity  so  that the  amounts  recognized  in the
financial statements do not differ materiality from the amounts that would be determined at the
reporting date.

Income Tax

hcome tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax expense.

Curent Tax

The current tax expense is based on taxable profit for the year.   Taxable profit differs from net
profit as reported in the statements of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable  or  deductible.    The  Company's  current  tax  liabilfty  is  calculated  using  30%  regular
corporate income tax QCIT) rate or 2% minimum coxporate income tax rate, whichever is higher.
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Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the canying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable  profit.   Deferred  tax   liabilities   are   generally   recognized   for  all   taxable  temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for an deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets  is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

DefeITed tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities  and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow  from the manner in which the  Company  expects,  at the  end of the reporting period,  to
recover or settle the canying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and Deferred Tax for the Year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive  income or directly in equity,  in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Provisions , Coiwhgent Lial]ilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation, either legal or constructive,
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the company will be required to settle the obligation
through an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits, and the amount of the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

The amount of the provision recognized is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the  present  obligation  at the  end  of each  reporting  period,  taking  into  account  the  risks  and
uncertainties surounding the obligation.  A provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation; its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When  some  or  all  of the  economic  benefits  required to  settle  a  provision  are  expected  to  be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certaln that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the cuITent best
estinate.

If it  is  no  longer  probable  that  a transfer  of economic  benefits  will  be  required  to  settle  the
obligation, the provision should be reversed.

Contingent assets and liabilities are not recognized in the statement of financial position.
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Events after Reporting Date

Subsequent events  that provide  additional  infomation  about  conditions  existing  at  period  end
(adjusting  events)  are  recognized  in  the  financial  statements.  Subsequent  events  that  provide
additional  information  about  conditions  existing  after  period  end  (non-adjusting  events)  are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

NOTE 5 -   SIGNITICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGRENTS AND ESTIMATES

The  preparation  of the  financial  statements  in  accordance  with P%z.JzZ7pz.77e  Fz.77o77cz.oJ Raporfz.77g
Sfc7#c7cz7.cJs  requires  the  Company  to  make  estimates  and  assumptions  that  affect  the  amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.  Future events may occur which will
cause  the  assumption  used  in  arriving  at  the  estimates  to  change.    The  effects  of changes  in
estimates will be reflected in the financial statements as they become reasonably determinable.

Judgments

In  the  process  of  applying  the  Company's  accounting  policies,  management  has  made  the
following judgments,  apart  from  those  involving  estimations,  which  have  the  most  significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Operating Lease Commitments -Compc[ny as Lessee

Based on Management evaluation, the lease arrangements entered into by Company as lessee are
accounted for as  operating leases because the  Company has  determined that the  lessor will not
transfer the ownership of the leased assets to the Company upon termination of the lease and the
lessor has not given the  Company an option to purchase the asset at a price that is sufficiently
lower than the fair value at the date of the option.

Assessmeut Of lmpciirment Of Norf inanctal Assets

The Company determines whether there are indicators of inpaiment of the Company's property
and equipment, real and other properties owned and acquired and prepaid expenses.  hdicators of
impairment   include   significant   change   in   usage,   decline   in   the   asset's   fair   value   on
underperfomance relative to expected historical or projected future results.   Determining the fair
value requires the determination of future cash flows and future economic beneflts expected to be
generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets.  It requires the Company
to  make  estimates  and  assumptions  that  can materially  affect the financial  statements.    Future
events could be used by management to  conclude that these assets are impaired.   Any resulting
inpairment loss  could have a material adverse impact on the Company's financial position  and
financial performance.  The preparation of the estimated future cash flows and economic benefits
involves significant j udgments and estimation.

No impaiment loss is recognized in the Company's financial statements in 2017 and 2016.

Estimates

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
canying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated AIlowc[nce f ory Impairment Of Receivables

The  Company  maintains  allowance  for  impairment  losses  at  a  level  considered  adequate  to
provide for potential uncollectible receivables.  This  amount is  evaluated based on  such factors
that affect the collectability of the accounts. These factors include, the age of the receivables, the
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length  of the  Company's  relationship with the  customer,  the customer's  payment behavior and
known market factors. The amount and tiring of recorded expenses for any period would differ if
the Company made different judgments or utilized different estimates. An increase in allowance
for impairment losses would increase the recorded operating expenses and decrease current assets.

For the puapose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis
of similar credit risk characteristics. Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future
cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors' ability to pay all amounts
due according to the contractual terns of the assets being evaluated.

In determining the allowance for credit losses, the Company considered the implementing rules
and regulation under section 9 (i) of Republic Act No. 8556 (The Financing Act of 1998) issued
by the  Securities  and Exchange Commission (SEC) that requires  100%  allowance for probable
losses  for:  a)  more than  six months  past  due.  b)  Past  due  loans  secured  by  collateral  such  as
inventories,  receivable,  equipment and other chattels that have  declined  in value by more than
50% without the borrowers offering additional collateral for the loans. c) Past due loans secured
by real estate mortgage, title to which is  subject to adverse clain rendering settlement through
foreclosure doubtful. d) When the borrower, and his co-maker or guarantor is insolvent or where
their  whereabouts  is  unknown,  or  their  earning  power  is  permanently  impaired.  e)  Accrued
interest receivable that remain uncollected after six (6) months from maturity date of such loans to
which it accrues. I) Accounts receivable past due for 361 days.

Total loans receivables recognized in the Company's statements of financial position amounted to
P  194,777,761  and P  163,889,177 as  at December 31,  2017 and 2016, respectively, which is net
of the related allowances for doubtful accounts amounting to P 10,253,397 and P 30,450,649, as
at those dates, respectively.

Estimating Usef ul Lives Of prope:rty arid Equipment

The Company estimates the useful lives of its property and equipment based on the period over
which these assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of these assets
and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, only if there is a significant change
in the asset or how it is used.

The following estimated useful lives are used for the depreciation of property and equipment:

Leasehold inprovement
Office Furniture Fixtures and Equipment
Transportation EauiDment

As  at  December  31,  2017  and  2016,  the  carrying  amounts  of the  Company's  property  and
equipment amounted to P  1,430,095  and P 2,825,337, respectively. Depreciation cost charged to
operation amounts to P 1,130,069 and P 1,466,573 in 2016 and 2015, respectively.

NOTE6-CASH

Cash at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of cash flow can be reconciled to
the related items in statements of financial position as follows:

2017                                  2016
Cashinbanks                                                                                   P       39,362,128         P       74,345,485

casli fund 40,000                              30,000
I       39,402,128         P       74,375,485
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Cash in bank includes deposits  on savings  and culTent account that earns interest based on the
prevailing  bank  deposit rates.  Interest  income  from  cash  and  long  term  investment  (Note  10)
recognized in the Statements of Comprchensive Income amounted to P 1,468,448 and P1,893,055
as   of  December   31,   2017   and   2016,   respectively.   Petty   cash   fund   is   intended   for   daily
disbursements of small amount.

NOTE 7 -    LOANS RECEIVABLE

The Company's loans receivable consist of:

2017                                   2016
Loans receivable                                                                             P     242,034,426         P     242,845,289
Less: Unearned interest income

I
I
I
B

I

37,003268 (48,505,463)
Total loans receivables                                                                            205,031,158                  194,339,826
Less: Allowance for im airment 10,253,397 (30,450,649)

P     194,777,761          P      163,889,177

Loans  receivables  are  interest bearing notes,  ranging from  1.5% to  2.5% per month.  These are
collectible based on the monthly amortization schedule. hterest income earned from receivable
from customers amounted to P 36,829,277 and P 39,979,130 in 2017 and 2016, respectively.

As   of  December   31,   2017   and   2016,   loans   receivable   amounting   to   P   80,503,303   and
P 16,236,395 are covered by Real Estate Mortgage, respectively.

Movements in allowance for impairment of receivables :

2017                                  2016
Allowance, BeginningBalance                                                 P       30,450,649         P       44,745,154
Add : hi aiment loss                                                                                1,025,767                      3,796,888
Total                                                                                                                  31,476,416                    4 8, 5 42,042
Less: Write off                                                                                            21,223,019                     18,091,393
Allowance, Endin Balance                                                         P       10,253,397          P       30,450,649

All of the Company's loans receivables have been reviewed for indication of impairment, certain
loans receivables were found to be impaired, and hence, adequate amounts of allowance for credit
losses have been recognized.

In detemining the recoverability of loans receivables, the Company considers any change in the
credit quality of the loans receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the end of the
reporting period.  The concentration of credit risk is linited due to the customer base being large
and unrelated.  Accordingly, the BOD believes that there is no further allowance for credit losses
required in excess of those that were already provided.

During the year 2017  and 2016,  the  Company has written off the amount of P 21,223,019  and
P 18,091,393, respectively.

Aging of past due accounts but not impaired and credit quality of lcians and other receivables are
disclosed in Note 30.

On August 1, 2016, the Company entered into an agreement with Backbone South SME, a private
limited company under the law of the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg with office address at  1,rue
jean-Pierre Brasseur -L-1258 Luxembourg to  support the continuous growth and expansion of
Hyper Growth SME needing above P 3,000,000 that the Company cannot serve. The backbone
will lend $  800,000 representing 80% share and the Company will share $ 200,000 representing
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20%  share  on the Fund.  Under this  agreement,  the total  loans receivables  are  inclusive  of the
P49,748,916 and P22,006,942 transactions for the year 2017 and 2016, respectively.

NOTE 8 -OTRERRECEIVABLES

This account consists of the following:

2017                                    2016
Advances to officers and employees                                             P          787,427               P            13 , 645
Advances others                                                                                         1,032,778                            13 4,2 5 6
Total                                                                                                      P       1,820,205               P          147,901

Advances  to  officers  and  employees  which  consist mainly  of receivable  from  employees  and
officers which  are non-interest bearing and are nomally liquidated within in month.  Advances
others pertains to expense incuned by the Company on behalf of funders such as expenses shared
by the funders  on the instafin system, trainings  and seminars which are reimbursable  and non-
interest bearing.

NOTE 9 -PREPAYRENTS

This account consists of the following:

2017                                   2016
Prepaid income tax                                                                        P          1,838,534         P         2,237,593

aid insurance 44,853                            148,03 8
P           1,883,387          P          2,3 85,631

Prepaid  income  tax pertains  to  excess  income  tax  payment which  is  creditable  against  future
taxable income. Prepaid insurance pertains to the employee's health insurance.

NOTE 10 -   INVESTRENT

Outstanding balance of investment are as follows:

2017                                   2016
Short tern investment                                                            P    176,037,124          P
Long tern investhent                                                                                                            23 8,192,209
Total                                                                                   I 176,037,124           P    238,192,209

hvestment   pertains   to   the   time   deposits   made   to   various   banks   which   earns   interest
approximately  between  0.75%  to  1.25  %  per  armum.  These  investments  were  restricted  as  a
security and collateral on the loans QTote 15).

Details of the balances are as follows:

2017                                   2016
Banco De Oro, Inc.
Security Bank
LandBankofthePhilippines
Metro Bank and Trust Company
Development Bank of the Philippines

P     106,956,884            P     101,616,412
69,080,240                       48,100,000

40,876,516

25,173,375

22,425,906
Total P     176,037,124           P    238,192,209
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NOTE 11 -   INVESTJ\flNT PROPERTY
This pertains to Real and Other Properties Acquired aiopA) specifically residential lot acquired
by the company in settlement of receivable through foreclosure or dacion en pago. Movements of
this account are as follows:

2017                            2

Costs
Beginning Balance
Additious

P    9,846,069
200'000

P  1,847,080
7,998,989

Balance P  10,046,069          P  9,846,069
Accumulated depreciation

BegingBalance
Depreciation expense

Balance

amount December 31                                                                                   P  10,046,069          P  9,846,069

ROPA  is  booked  at  the  caITying  amount  of loan  (outstanding  loan  balance  adjusted  for  any
unamortized premium or discount less allowance for inpaiment, which take into account the fair
value  of  the  collateral)  plus  booked  accrued  interest  less  allowance  for  credit  losses,  plus
transaction costs incurred upon acquisition. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale of ROPA is
immediately 1.ecognized in the statement of comprehensive income as gains (losses) from sale of
ROPA  under  Other  Gains  ajosses)  account.  Real  and  Other  Properties  Acquired  consists  of
residential  lots  with  canying  value   of  P   10,046,069   and  P   9,846,069   in  2017   and  2016,
respectively.

NOTE 12 -   PROPERTY AND EQUIPRENT

A reconciliation of the canying amounts at the begiming and end of 2017 and 2016, of property
and equipment is shown below:

2017

Funiture,
Leasehold              rixtures and                 Office            Transportation             Other

Improvements              devises                Equipment            Equipment           Equipment

Costs
December31,2016                        P        1,387,333   P        1,409,273    P     I,540,976   P      2,187,637   P        545,467   P          7,070,686

Additions                                                           158,118                       9,200                152,700                          -                    379,187                    699,205

Dispos als                                                                                                                                           -                 (1,119,800)                       -                    (I,119,800)

Decemb er 31, 2017                                    1,545,451               1,418,473            1,693,676             1,067,837              924,654                6,650,091

Accumulated depreciation
Decerhoer 3 I, 2016                                     1,112.486                  893,173                903,560

Depreciation expens e                                  148,159                  322,135               255,181

Disposals

1,001,790               334,341                 4,245,349

207,313                197,28]                  1,130,069

(155,422)                                                (155,422)
Decemb er 31, 2017                                      1,260,645               1,215,308            1,158,741              1.053,681               531,622                 5,219,996

Canyingamount-12/3l/2016        P           274,847   P           516,100   P        637,416   P      1,185,847   P       211,126   P         2,825,337

Carryingamount-12/31/2017         P           284,806   P           203,165   P        534,935   P            14,156   P        393,032   P          I,430,095

i
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2016

Furniture,

Leasehold              fixtures and                 Office            Transportation            Olher

Improvements              devices                Equipment            Equipment            Equipment Total

Cos ts

Decenber31,2015                        P        1,387,333   P        1,345,473   P     1,403,657   P       I,067,837   P          39,197   P          5,243,497

Additions                                                                                                 63,800                137,319             1,119,800               506,270                 1,827,189

Disposals

December 31, 2016                                    i,387,333               I,409,273            1,540,976            2,187,637              545,467                7,070,686

Accumulatedde|]reciation

Decenber 3 I, 2015                                       864,103                  710,979               596,183                583,342                 24,170                2,778,776

Depreciation expense                                  248,383                   182,194               307,377                418,448               310,171                 I,466,573

Disposals

Decend er 31, 2016                                     1,112,486                  893,173               903,560             I,001,790               334,341                 4,245,349

Canyingamount-12/3l/2015        P           523,230   P           634,494   P        807,474   P         484,495   P          15,027   P         2,464,721

Canyinganrount-12/31/2016         P           274,847   P           516,100   P        637,416   P      1,185,847   P        211,126   P         2,825,337

As  of December 31,  2017  and 2016,  management has determined that there is  no  evidence of
inpaiment on any item of property and equipment.

The Company has no contractual commitment to acquire property and equipment at the end of the
reporting periods and there were no property and equipment used as security to any indebtedness.

NOTE 13 -OTHERNON CURRENT ASSETS

This account consists of:

2017                                   2016
Miscellaneous dep osits                                                                 I             412,953         P             248 ,7 89
Rental de osits                                                                                                   3 42,727                          222,027

I             755,680         P             470,816

Miscellaneous  deposit pertains to various refundable deposits made to  service providers. Rental
deposits pertain to security deposit required by the lessor to cover any unpald utility bills and to
answer for any damages which the leased property may suffer. This amount is refundable within
thirty (30) days upon termination of lease contract and after deduction of any amount due to lessor
Otote 25).

NOTE 14 -   TRADE AND 0THERPAYABLES

This account consists of:

2017                                  2016
Trade payables                                                                                  P                  2,080         P          1,030,122

ayables                                                                                                 3,480,13 6                       3 , 042,5 62
P          3,482,216         P          4,072,684

Trade payables represent liabilities to various suppliers for the purchase of goods and services in
the normal course of business. Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing. The Company
has  financial risk management policies  in place to  ensure that all payables  are paid within the
credit timeframe.

D
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Details of other payables are shown below:

2017                                   2016
Accrued interest expense and others
Withholding tax payable
Ss srmrmpHIC payable
Do cumentary stamp tax payable
hsurance payable
Percentagetaxpayable
SssrmMF Loan Pa

P           2'052,180
583,642
407'668
153,133
120,068
107'504
55,941

P              1,840,081
690,379
84,416

134,674
48,734

215,364
28,914

P            3,480,136         P           3 ,042,562

Details of accrued expenses are shown below:

2017                                     2016
Interest payable                                                                           P          1,717,696           P             1,804,920
Others                                                                                                                    334,484                                  3 5 ,161

P           2,052,180            P             1,840,0 81

NOTE 15 -LOAN PAYABLES

This account is composed of:

2017                                   2016
Current
CorporateLender
BDO Unibank, hc.
Security Balik
Land Bank of the Philippines
Small Business Guaranty & Fund Corp.
Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company
Development Bank of the Philippines

P        136,883,000
84,689,600
59,792,370
39£75,000
15'000'000

P        129,499,488
79'105'200
40,500,000
42,950,000

21,100'000
20,000,000

I       335,739,970         P       333,154,688

2017                                   2016
Non-Current

orate Lender                                                                   P                           -         P         8 8,228,740

Total Loans Pa ables                                                              P       335,739,970         P       421,383,428

Come rate Lender

On 2016, the Company entered into loan agreements with Triple Jump B.V.  for the purpose of
fufunding the lending activities of the Company. These loans amounted to € 1,000,000 with a term
of two C2) years and bear an interest of 7.59/o per annum. The interest is paid semi-annually and
the principal is due and payable upon maturity of the loan. Outstanding balance of the loan as Of
Deceniber 31, 2017 ancl 2016 amounted to P 49,837,596 and P 51,840,000, respectively.

On 2015, the Company obtained a loan from hcofin amounting to $ 1,000,000 with a term of two
C2)  years,  bears  an  interest  of 7.75%  per  annum  and payal)le  semi-annually.  On  December  7,
2016, the Company settled the $ 500,000 and reloan it to Euro amounting to €466,000 with a term
of two  (2)  years,  bears  an interest of 7.4% per amum  and payable  semi-amually.  On January
2017  settled  the  remaining  $  500,000  and  reloan  it  again  to  Euro  amounting  to  €466,000.
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Outstanding  balance  Of loan  from  Incofin  as  at  December  31,  2017  and  2016  amounted  to
P 21,737,025 and P 49,062,440, respectively.

In  August  2015,  the  Company  obtalned  an  unsecured  loan  from  Symbiotics  SA,  a  company
incorporated and organized under the laws of Switzerland, amounting to se75,000 with a tern of
two @) years, bears an interest of 7j9/o per annum and payable semi-annually.  No collateral was
rrequired   to   secure   this   loan.   Outstanding   balance   as   of  December   31,   2016   amounts   to
Pl8,678,750  and  were  fully  paid  in  2017.  The  loan  requires  the  Company  to  maintain  the
Uncovered  Capital Ratio  of at  least tventy  five  percent  (25%).  For the  purpose  of this  loan,
Uncovered Capital Ratio shall be defined with respect to the Issuer's loan portfolio as the sum of
[(a) the aggregate principal amount of all loans with one or more payments more than thirty (30)
days past due, plus a) the aggregate principal amount of all loans that have been restmctured or
rescheduled on account or in anticipation of a payment default minus (c) total loan loss provision]
divided by (dy Equity. The Company has compiled with this covenant obligation.

In 2012, the Company secured a loan amounting to P  10,000,000  frc>m Oiko  Credit Ecumenical
Development Corporate Society, bears an interest of 11249/o per annum and are payable quarterly
with  principal  repayment.  h  2014,  additional  loan  of P  20,000,000  and  P   15,000,000  were
obtained  bearing  an  interest  of 9.71%  and  8249/o  per  amum,  respectively.  h  October  2016,
additional  loan  Of P   15,000,000  were  obtained  from  Oiko  Credit  Ecumenical  Development
Corporate Society under the same tens and conditions. These loans are secured by assignment of
rreceivables. Outstanding balance as at Deceinber 31, 2017 and 2016 amounts to P 10£91£95 and
P 16pro,059, respectively

In  June  and  July  2014,  the  Company  obtained  a  loan  from  Peace  and  Equity  Foundation
amounting  to  P  4£75,000  and  P  1250,000,  bearing  an  interest  of 8.5%  per  annum  and  are
payable quarterly. In May 2015, additional loan was obtained from Peace and Equity Foundation
under the same terms and conditions. In June 2016, additional loan of p 6,500,000 were obtained
bearing an interest of 8.5% per annum and are payable quartedy. Outstanding balances of loan as
of December 31,  2017  and 2016  amounts to P 3209£64  and P  6£00,000,  respectively.  These
loans are unsecured.

Other loans were obtained from Micro Credit Entexprise with an aggregate amount of $ 1,000,000
on  2014   and   2015,   bearing  an  interest  of  9.625%   per   annum   and   are  payable   quarterly.
Outstanding   balance   as   of  December   31,   2017   and   2016   amounts   to   P   14,501,284   and
P 24P06jooj respectively Loans were also obtained from Lend a Hand with an average rate of
7%  per  annum  and  are  due  monthly.  The  loan  was  secured  in  July  2013  with  no  collateral.
Outstanding   balance   as   of  Decerhber   31,   2017   and   2016   amounts   to   P   37206£36   and
P5 0,725, 544, resp eetively.

The   debt   agreement   provided   for   certain   requirements   and   restrictions   with   respect   to
maintenance of certain financial ratios such as debt to equity ratio of five percent (5%) and PAR
>30 days. The Company did not comply with the certain financial ratios required by the creditors
in the debt agreement. As a result of non-compliance with the loan covenants, the unpaid principal
amount were  became  due  and  demandable,  the  remaining  balance  were  still  negotiable  under
Stand Still Agreement as of reporting period.

Total payments made on the principal amounting to P123£09,479 and P53,105,418 in 2017 and
2016, respectively.  Outstanding balance of the loans as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 amounts
to P196,675£70 and P129,499,488, respectively.

Land Bank of the PhiliDDines

In  2017,  the  Company  entered  into  loan  agreements  Of various  dates  with  Land Bank  of the
Philippines   for  the  purpose   of  financing  its   business   operation.   These   loans   amounted  to
P44,105,000 with a term of one (1) year and bear interest of 6.00% per annum.  The interest is
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paid monthly and the principal is due and payable upon maturity of the loan which is one year
from  the  date  of loan  granted.  The  loan  is  scoured  by  the  Company's  dollar  time  deposit
amounting to $1£ 10,000 as at December 31, 2017.

In  2016,  the  Company  entered  into  loan  agreements  of various  dates  with Land  Bank  of the
Philippines  for  the  purpose   of  financing  its  business   operation.   These   loans   amounted  to
P42,950,000 with a ten of one (1) year and bear interest of 6.00% per amum. The interest is
paid monthly and the principal is due and payable upon maturity of the loan which is  one year
from  the  date  of  loan  granted.  The  loan  is  secured  by  the  Company's  dollar  time  deposit
amounting to $816,000 as at December 31, 2016.

Total payments made  on the principal  amounting to P47,680,000  and P95,020,000  in 2017  and
2016, respectively. Outstanding balance of the loans as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 alnounts
to P33,975,000 and P42,950,000, respectively.

BD0 Unibank. Inc.

In  2017,  the  Company  entered  into  additional  loan  agreements  of various  dates  with  BDO
Unifoank,  Inc.  for  purposes  of  funding  the  lending  activities  Of the  Company  amounting  to
P 89,589,600 with a ten of one (1) year and bears an interest of 3% per annum. The principal is
due and payable upon maturity of the loan.  The loan is  secured by Company's dollar and euro
time deposits amounting to $876,83 8 and € 1,000,738 as at December 31, 2017, respectively.

In 2016, the Company entered into loan agreements of various dates with BDO Uhifoank, Inc. for
purposes of funding the lending activities of the Company amounting to P 79,105200 with a tern
of one (1) year and bears an interest Of 3% per annum.  The principal is  due and payal)le upon
mmaturity of the loan. The loan is scoured by Company's dollar and euro time deposits anounting
to $824£86 and € 1,163,400 as at December 31, 2016, respectively.

Total  payments  made  on the  principal  amounting to  P84,005200  and  Pnil  in  2017  and  2016,
respectively.  Outstanding balance  of the  loans  as  Of December  31,  2017  and 2016  amounts to
P84,689,600 and P79,105200, respectively.

Small Business Guarantv & Fund Corn.

On November 29,  2017,  the  Company obtained a loan from  Small Business  Guaranty  & Fund
Coxp. for the purpose of funding the lending activities of the Company amounting to P 15,000,000
with  a ten  of sixty  days  (60)  and bears  an interest  Of 559/a  per  annum payable via  a  single
payment due in January 28, 2018. These loans are secured by assignment of receival)les.

MetroDolitan Bank & Trust Comuanv

In January 8, 2016, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Metropolitan Bank & Trust
Company   for   purposes   of  funding  the   lending   activities   of  the   Company   amounting  to
P21,100,000 with a term Of one (1) year bears an interest of 35% per armum, payable via a single
payment  due  in January  2,  2017.  This  loan  is  secured by the  Company's  USS  Time Deposits
amounting to $ 500,000. As of reporting data the loans were fully paid.

DDeveloDmentBankofthephiliuDines

h December 27, 2016, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Development Bank of
the Philippines for the purpose  of funding the lending activities  of the  Company amounting to
P20,000,000 with a ten of one (1) year and bears an interest of 3.25% per annum. The loan is
ssecured by the Company's dollar time deposits amounting to $ 450,100 as at December 31, 2016.
As of reporting date, the loans were fully paid.
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On August 1, 2016, the Company entered into an agreement wit:h Backbone South SME, a private
linited company under the law of the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg With office address at 1,rue
jean-PieiTe Brasseur -L-1258 Luxembourg to support the continuous growth and expansion of
Hyper Growth SME needing above P 3,000,000 that the Company cannot serve. The backbone
will lend $  800,000 representing 80% share and the Company will share $ 200,000 representing
20% share on the Fund. The total fund were used as an collateral to secure a loan from Security
Bank on amounting to P 59,792,370 and P 40,500,000 on 2017 and 2016, respectively, bearing an
interest of 9.625% per annum, interest is payable monthly.

Details of movement of loans payable is as follows:

2017                                       2016
Balance, January 1                                                                       P         421,383,428          P         283,906,498
Proceeds                                                                                                            210,651,021                       179,391,512

Payments 296,294,479 (41,914,582)
Balance,December31                                                               P         335,739,970          P         421,383,428

Finance   cost  charged  to   operation  pertaining  to  these   loans   amounts   to  P17,706,829   and
P19,623,613 in 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Foreign denominated loan as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 were translated to peso using the
ESP  prevailing  rate  of  P  49.92  and  P  49.81  per  USS,  and  P  59.61   and  P  51.84  per  Euro,
respectively.

NOTE 16 -   RETmEnmNT BENEFITs

On  January  1,  2015,  the  Company  engages  the  services  of an  independent  actuarial,  for  the
Company's actuarial valuation of Retirement Plan. The actuarial report was based on employees'
data  and  applied the Accrued  Benefit Actuarial  Cost Method  (Project Unit  Credit)  tal{ing  into
account the factors of investment, mortality, disability and salary projection rates to detemine the
actuarial liability of the Retirement Plan.

The Company's Retirement Plan is non-contributory which provides a retirement benefit equal to
one hundred percent (100%) of plan salary for every year of credit service.

The  estimated  annual  cost  or  culTent  contribution  for the  valuation  period  January  1,  2015  to
December 31, 2015 is P 570,000. This amount is recommended to be paid monthly or quarterly
on the basis  of a percentage of covered payroll for the period which is  actuarially computed at
10.5%. This actuarial funding rate shall be the basis of current and future service  contributions
until the next actuarial valuation.

The  past  service  liability  as  of January  1,  2015  is  P  1,319,121  (actuarial  liability  for  services
rendered prior to valuation date).

As  of January  1,  2015  there  is no  vested benefit under the Plan  (benefit payable  assuming all
eligible  employees  will  avail  of their  benefit  during  the  valuation  period),  since  none  of the
employees is eligible for the Plan Benefits as of the valuation date.

The following are the state:nehi Of actirm.ial assurxptions

1.    ValuationDate
2.    EffectiveDate.
3.    InvestmentRate
4.    Mortality Rate

5.    Disability Rate

January 1, 2015
January 1, 2015
30/o p.a compounded annually
The 2001 CSO Table -Generational
(Scale AA, Society of Actuaries)
The Disability Study, Period 2,
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6.    Salary projection Rate
7.    Normal Retirement Age
8.    Projected Retirement Age

9.    Funding Method

10. Mamer of payment
1 1 .  Withdrawal Rates

Benefit 5 (Society of Actuaries)
7o/o p.a, compounded annually
Age 60
100% of latest Monthly Salary
for every year of service
Accnied Benefit Actuarial Cost Method
Q'roj ected Unit Credit)
Lump Sum

Age                 Rate
19 _ 24              7T3fr%
25 -29              6.00%
30 -34              4.50%
35-39              3.00%
40 -44              2.00%
>  -45            0.00%

Under the Accrued Benefit Valuation Method, the Annual Normal  Cost is the present value  of
retirement benefits  payable  in the  future  in respect  of services  in the  current period.  The Past
Service Liability is the present value of the units of benefits payable in the future in respect of
services rendered prior to valuation date.

The   amount  of  retirement   obligation  recognized   in  the   statement  of  financial  position   is
detemined as follows:

The movement of the Define Benefit Obligation is as follows:

2017                                   2016
Balance at beginning of the year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Benefits

I
D

I

a

I

P        2,496,733
589'504
74,902

P            1,889,121
550,938
56,674

P         3,161,139          P          2,496,733

The  component  of retirement benefits  recognized  in  statement  of comprehensive  income  is  as
follows:

2017                                   2016
Cunent service cost                                                                      I            589,504          P             550,93 8
Interest cost                                                                                                          74,902                             5 6,674

ected retun on lan asset
I            664,406          P             607,612

The total cost relating to defined benefit I)lan amounts to P 664,406 and P 607,612 in 2017 and
2016, respectively, representing the current service cost and interest cost were recognized in profit
or loss.

NOTE 17 -   SIIARE CAPITAL

The Company's original authorized capital is  1,000 shares with P 10,000 par value per share. On
December 2,  2013, this was  increased to  11,000  shares  divided  into  5,000  common  shares  and
6,000 preferred shares at par value off 10,000 per share.

Preferred  shareholders  have  no  voting  rights  at  any  regular  or  special  stockholders'  meeting
except those  cases  sp?cifically provided by  law.  Preferred  shares  are non-cumulative  and non-
participating except for the holders  of Class "D" Preferred  Shares, the holders of all classes  of
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preferred  shares  shall  have  preference  in  the  payment  of  dividends  over  the  holders  of the
common shares.

Movement of share capital is as follows:

2017

Common               PrefelTed
Shares                      Shares

Plo.000 par         @10,000 par
Amount

Outstanding, January 1, 2017
Issuance

uisition

2,020                        6,000 P           8 0,200,000

Outstanding, December 31, 2017 2,020                         6,0 0 0           P           80,200.000

Common               Preferred
Shares                      Shares

@10,000 par          @10,000 par
value) Amount

Outstanding, January 1, 2016                                                        2,020                        5,200           P           72,200,000
Issuance                                                                                                                                                 800                             8,0 00, 0 0 0

uisition
Outstanding, December 31, 2016                                                2,020 6,000           P           80.200,00 0

Voting Rights

Only common shares shall have voting rights.
The holders of all classes of preferred shares shall have no voting rights at any regular or special
stockholders' meeting except in those cases specially provided for by law.

Dividends

All  classes  of preferred  shares  shall  be  non-cumulative  and  non-participating.  Except  for  the
holders  of class  "D"  preferred  shares.  The  holder  of all  classes  of preferred  shares  shall  have
preference in the payment of dividends over the holder of common shares.

The dividend rate shall be: up to six percent (6%) per annum for Class "A" preferred shares: up to
eight percent (8%) per  annum for Class  "8" preferred  Share:  and up to ten percent (10%) per
annum for Class "C" Preferred Shares.

Holders of Class "D" preferred shares shall, together with holders of common shares, sbare in the
dividends declared from the unappropriated retained earnings remaining after payments shall have
been made on Class "A" class "8" and class "C" preferred shares.

Pre-emptive RIghis

The holders  of all  classes  of preferred shares  shall not have pre-emptive richts to purchase  or
subscribe to any issue or disposition of shares of any class of the Corporation, whether out of the
unissued shares or otherwise.
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Redemption

The Corporation shall have the right to redeem  at par value,  Class  "A" preferred  shares at any
time after one (1) year from issuance thereof; class "8" preferred shares at any tine after two (2)
years from issuance thereof; and Class "C" preferred shares at any time after three (3) years from
issuance thereof. The Corporation shall have the right to redeem class `D" prefeITed shares at any
time after five (5) years from issuance thereof at market value.

Financing Company Act

Under Republic Act QA)  8556, Financing Company Act, the Company is required to maintain
the following capital requirements:

(a)  Minimum paid-up capital of p 10 Million
(b)  Additional capital requirement for each branch of p i.00 Million for branches established

in Metro  Manila, P  0.50 Million for branches  established in other classes  of cities and
P 0.25 Mllion for branches established in municipalities.

For the years  ended December 31,  2017  and 2016,  the  Company was  in  compliance with the
minimum paid-up capital under RA 8556.

NOTE 18 -   REVEr`nJE

An analysis of the Company's revenue is as follows:

2017                                 2016
hterestandfinancefees                                                             P       40,652,668         P       49,070,615
Processing fees on loans                                                                              3,213,401                       4,670,901
Deferment fee income                                                                            1,743,800                        474,5 0 0

P       45,609,869          P        54,216,016

NOTE l9-DIRECT COSTS

An analysis of the Company's direct costs is as follows:

2017                                 2016
Finance cost Ovote 21)
Salaries, bonus and allowances Otote 24)
Rental
Depreciation Otote 22)
Transportation and travel
Finance service charge
HDMF, Philhealth and SSS contribution Qtote 24)
Electricity and water
Communication
Office supplies
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance
Gasoline and oil
Representation and entertainment
Commission

P        17,706,829          P        19,623,613
4,693,781                        6,363,415
1,498,003                         1,500,221
1,130,069                         1,466,573

600,787                         1,960,803
576,789                          1,133,845
459'403
357,238
257,471
170'461
148,718
138,927
94'278
76'450

457,469
381,919
326,174
142,392
188,961

211,562

106,965
353,201

50.000
P       27,909,204          P       34,267,113
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NOTE 20 -OPERATING EXPENSE

An analysis of the Company's operating expense is as follows:

2017                                 2016
Salaries, bonus and allowances QTote 24)
Professional fee
Taxes and Licenses
Uniform, medical and etc.
Impairment loss QTote 7 and 23)
Consultaney fee
Retirement expense
Bank charges
Representation
Repair and maintenance
Advertising and promo
HDMF, Philhealth and SSS contribution OTote 24)
Transportation and travel
HonorariumDirector's fee
hsurance
Communication
Gasoline and oil
Membership and subscription
Donations and gifts
Miscellaneous

P          6,630,995          P          2,3 85,260
2,891,742                       2,011,Ilo
2,109,688                         4,411,133
1,125,868                            663,730
1,025,767                       3,796,887

877,825
664,406
465,571
313,771
205,243
143'740
107'251
97,803
91,219
88,822
64,368
15'348
11,278
6,690

218,434

990,903
607,612
93,688

271,133

178,429
431,190

159,983
308,327
206'925
137,728
81,365

17,853

189,465
33,638

353,073
I       17,155,829          P        17,329,432

NOTE 21 -   FINANCE COST

An analysis of the Company's finance costs are shown below:

2017                                  2016

Corporate Lenders
Security Bank
Land Bank of the Philippines
Banco De Oro, hc.
Development Bank of the Philippines
Small Business Guaranty & Fund Corp.
Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company

P        12,783,932          P        15,190,440

1,460,954                           3 74,062
1,410,918                          1,491,719
I,344,182                         1,082, 5 32

630,411                                 8,463
72£29

4,103                         1,476,3 97

P       17,706,829          P        19,623,613

NOTE 22 -   mffArmmNT Loss, ErmLo¥EEs BENEFITs AND DEPREclATloN

The following expenses were recognized as follows:

2017

Operating
Direct ex enses                  Total

Impairmentloss                                                              P                         -P    1,025,767     P 1,025,767
Employee benefits                                                                       5,153,184              7,402,652         12,555,836

reciation 1,130,069                                     -            1,130,069

P           6,283,253        P    8,428,419     P14,711,672
*Includes salaries, wages, slatulory contributions and relirernent benef its
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2016

Operating
Direct ex enses                   Total

Impairmentloss                                                             P                         -P   3,796,887     P3,796,887
Employee benefits*                                                                    6,820,884              3,152,855          9,973,739

reciation                                                                                    1,466, 5 73                                  -           1,466,5 73
P      8,287,457       P    6,949,742     P15,237,199

*Includes salaries, wages. statutory contributions and retirement benef ills

NOTE 23 -nmAIRRENT Loss

Impairment   loss   on   loan   receivables   charged   to   operating   expense   in   the   statement   of
comprehensive  income amounts to P  1,025,767 and P 3,796,887 for the year ending December
31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

NOTE 24 -  ErmLoyEE.s conffENSATION AND OTRER BENEFITs

Aggregate employee benefits expense comprised:

2017                                  2016

Short-tern benefits
S s sffHIC/IIDhff Contribution
Retirement ex

P       11£24,776          P         8,748,675

566,654                           617,452

664,406                          6 07,612

P       12,555,836          P         9,973,739

These  are  charged  in the  Statement of Comprehensive  income  under  direct  cost  amounting to
P5,153,184  and  P  6,820,884  in  2017  and  2016  respectively,  Operating  expense  amounting  to
P7,402,651 and P 2,952,855 in 2017 and 2016 respectively.

NOTE 25 -LHASE AGREEMENTS

Company as lessee

The Company entered into lease agreements as follows:

a.    With BNM7210  Group  Coxp.  for an office space in Cebu City.  The  lease term  is for a
period  of  three  (3)  years  commencing  on  February  15,  2015  to  Febniary  14,  2018,
renewable by the agreement of both parties in writing. The Company has determined that
all significant risks and rewards of ownership of the property remain with the lessor.

b.    With Mountainview Leasing and Management Corporation for an office  space in Pasig
City. The lease term is for a period of one (1) year commencing on June 1, 2017 to May
31, 2018, renewable provided that the Company shall give a written notice of its intention
to renew the contract within sixty (60) days prior to the end of the contract. The Company
has detemined that all significant risks and rewards of ownership of the property remain
with the  lessor.  The  Company has  determined that all  significant risks  and rewards  of
ownership of the property remain with the lessor.

c.      With pine valley corporation for an office space in Baguio city. The lease tern is for a
period of one (1) year commencing on April  15,  2017 to April  14, 2018, renewable by
the   agreement  of  both  parties   in  writing.   The  Company  has   detemined  that  all
significant risks  and rewards  of ownership  of the property remain with the lessor.  The
Company  has  determined  that  all  significant  risks  and  rewards  of ownership  of the
property remain with the lessor.
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The agreements provides for payment of rental deposits which are recognized in the statements of
financial position, as part of other non-current assets.  The balance of the rental deposit amounted
to P 342,727 and P 222,027 as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 as disclosed in Note 13 .

Rent expense pertaining to this leased property amounted to P i,498,003  and P 1,500,221  for the
year ended December 31,  2017  and 2016, respectively and was  included  as part of direct cost
under the statement of comprehensive income.

Future minimum lease payments under such operating lease are as follows:

2017                                  2016
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

NOTE 26 -oTlmRINcol\m qoss)

The Company's other income consist of:

I             373,689         P             296,121
543,690

2017                                   2016
hterest income on bank deposits
Unrealized loss on translation of investment and loans
payable, net
Realized gain (loss) on settlement of loans, net
Miscellaneous income

P          1,468,448           P           1,910,791

(5,416,836)                      (1,552,113)
3,015,777                      (1,331,600)
1,650,553                             153,900

D

D

I
D

B

I
I
0

I             717,942          P          (819,022)

NOTE 27 -   ENCORE TARES

The  company's  income  tax  obligation  is  computed  based  on  regular  income  tax  of 30%  or
ndnimum coxporate income tax of 2% of the gross margin whichever is higher.

Income tax expense for the years ended December 31 consists of:

2017                                  2016
Current                                                                                                P      (4,115,983)         P      (3,437,077)
Deferred 4,234,803                       3 , 640,43 4

I             118,820          P             203,357

The reconciliation of income tax expense computed at the statutory tax rate to the provision for
income  tax  presented  in  the  statements  of comprehensive  income  for  2017  and  2016  are  as
follows:

Regular Corporate Income Tax

2017                                  2016
Income tax at statutory rate                                                        P             377,633         P             540,135
Tax effect of income subject to fmal tax                                            (440,534)                     (573,238)
Tax effect of non-deductible ex ense                                                         181,721                           236,460
Taxable due P             118,820          P             203,357

2017                                  2016
Grosshcome                                                                                   P       17,696,665         P       19,948,903
Add: Other income                                                                                         1,650,553                           153,900

Arbitra 605,735                           788,202
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Total Gross Income                                                                                    19,952,953                    20,891,005
MCIT Rate                                                                                                      2%                                2%

P             399,059          P             417,820

Net prepaid income tax after applicable excess tax credits  and quarterly income tax payment as
follows:

2017                                  2016
Tax dne (RCIT or MCIT whichever is higher)                       ¥             399,OS9         P             4L7,820
Income taxes paid for first 3 quarters                                                                                               2,655,413

ear excess credit                                                                              2,237,593
aid income tax                                                                    P 1,838,534 P       (2,237,593)

Components of deferred taxes recognized by the Company are as follows:

2017                                 2016

I
D

D

D

8

0

D

0

I
B

0

Allowance for loans losses
Retirement liability
Excess MCIT over RCIT
NOLC0
Uurealized forex loss

P          3,076,018          P          9,135,195
948,342
816,879

7,553'060
2,058,359

749,020
417,820

3 ,Ail ,I Jm
433,308

P       14,452,658          P        14,172,420

An analysis of DTA is as follows:

2017                                   2016
DTA at begiming of year:
Add:  DTA arising from MCIT

DTA arising from retirement expense
DTA arising from NOLCO
DTA arising from unrealized forex loss
DTA arising from allowance for loan losses

Less: Reversal of DTA from write off

I       14,172,420
399,059
199,322

4,115,983
1,625,051

307'730
6,366,907

P         13,957,958
417,820
182,284

3,437,m7
465,632

1,139,066

(5,427,417)
DTAatendofyear                                                                      I       14,452,658         P       14,172,420

The presentation of deferred tax expense is as follows:

2017                                  2016
Througbprofitorloss                                                                     P       14,779,309          P        14,152,578
Throu h other com rehensive income

P        14,779,309          P        14,152,578

Expiration detalls of MCIT and NOLCO is as follows:

Year Incurred          Date of Ex iration                                                     MCIT                       NOLCO
2016                             December 31, 2019                                     P              417,820          P          3,437,077
2017                             December 31, 2020 399,059                         4,155,983

P               816,879          P          7,593,060

NOTE 28 -   RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly, the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions.  Parties  are  also  considered  to  be  related  if they  are  subject  to  common  control  or



NEGOSYONG PINOY OVENTURE SOUTH) FINANCE CORPORATION
Notes to Find:ncial Staterments

Page 34 Of 45

common   significant  influence.   Related  parties  may  be  individuals   or  corporate   entities.   A
summary of the transactions and account balances with related parties follows:

2017
Amo\mt                       OLltstanding Balance

Nature of           Nature of
Relationship       T|.an§action            (Current                 Due from         I)ue to related               Terms                 Conditions

transaction)        related parties            p arties

Advances             P      1,221,938      P     I,221,938

Advances                     2,558,500

Non-interest
_         bearing; payable in

cach; no scheduled
2,558,500      repayment terms

Meso impact       Advances                   13,002,205           |3,oo2,2o5
FinanceAI

Advances                  30,399,267

Non-interest
-         bearing; payable in

cash; no scheduled
69,080,240      repayment terms

Due from VEH     Advances                              4,000           14,051,824

Non-interest
bearing; payable in
cash; no scheduled

-          repayment terms

Natue of          Nature of
Relationship       Transaction

Am ount                      Outstanding Balance

(current                Due from         Due t o related               T erms                 Condlt io ns
transaction)        related parties            parties

Meso impact       Advances            P   38,680,973
FinancervsI

Payment                     4,180,000

Non-interest
P38,680,973    bearing, payable in

cash; no scheduled
-          repayment terms

Unsecured

Due from VSI      Advances                  14,047,824           14,047,824

1]earing, payable in
cash; no scheduled

~           repayment terms

Unsecured

Related party transaction consists mainly of Due from Venture  South Intemational and Due to
Meso inpact,  Company's major shareholders.  These are non-interest bearing advances with no
collateral, payable in cash and no repayment ten.

Key Management Compensation

Key  management  includes  the  board  of  directors,   all  members   of  management  and  other
Company officers. Details of key management compensation follow:

2017                                   2016
Salaries and wages                                                                        I         3,552,224         P          1,498,954
Retirement expense                                                                                                                                 40 0 ,0 0 0
Directors' fees 91,219                          206,926

P          3,643,443          P          2,105,880

NOTH 29 -   FINANCIAL RISK MANAGERENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Foreign Currency RIsk

The Company's foreign exchange risk results primarily from movements of the Philippine peso
against the US dollar and Euro with respect to US dollar and Euro-denominated fmancial assets
and liabilities.
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The  Company's  transactional  currency  exposures  arise  from  dollar  denominated  short  ten
investment and Dollar and Euro denominated loans against the Company's functional currency.
The  Company  periodically  reviews the trend  of the  foreign  exchange  rates  and,  as  a practical
move,  increases  its US  dollar-denominated time  deposits  in tines when the Philippine  peso  is
depreciating or decreases its US  dollar-denominated time deposits in times when the Philippine
peso is appreciating. The following table shows the Company's US dollar and Euro-denominated
monetary financial assets and liabilities :

D

D

D

I

2017                                                                                 2016
US Dollar         Euro €                Peso               US Dollar             Euro €                   Peso

Financial Asset
Short ten investment              $ 2,331,193   € 1,000,738     P176,037,124
Longterm investment                                                                                                 -$2,604,938           €1,163,971   P238,192,209

Financial liabilities at
amortized cost:

able                              $ 1,674,209   €2,088,987    P335,739,970       $2,393,411           €1,466,000   P421]383,428

Net financial asset liabilities $     656,984 €1,088,249 ls9,702,84 $    211,527 € 302,029 (P183,191,219

For   purposes   of  restating   the   outstanding   balance   of  the   Company's   foreign   currency-
denominated financial asset and liabilities as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, the exchange rate
applied  is P  49.923  and P  49.813  per USS,  respectively  and P  59.613  and P  51.840  per Euro,
respectively.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar
and Euro exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Company's income before
tax for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 (due to changes in the fair value of financial
assets and liabilities).  There is no other impact on the Company's equity other than those already
affecting profit or loss.

Increase/Decrease                               Effect on Income
in Exchange Rate, net                               before Tax

December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016

+7.883
-7.883
+2.746
-2.746

£3,399,662
(3,399,662)
P248,519
(248,519)

Interest Rate Risk

hterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows  of financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.  The profitability  of the  Company may be
influenced  by the  changes  in the  level  of interest  rates.  h  the  event  that  interest rates  go  up
significantly, less clients will be inclined to avail of a loan. The Company funds its loan operation
throuch combination of the operational cash flow and borrowing fi.om funders abroad and local
banks. Any increase in interest rates will cause the Company to incur more expense for every peso
they Cam an interest income.

The Company follows a pnident policy on managing its assets and liabilities so as to ensure that
exposure to fluctuations in interest rates are kept within acceptable limits. The Company ensures
that  all  interest  bearing  loans  and borrowings  are  either short tern or made  at  a fixed rate  of
interest.

Credit Risk

Credit Risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fall to discharge an obligation
and cause another party to incur a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily
through its cash and loans receivables. The Company has in place the business credit policy and
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procedures regarding loan activities from credit initiation approval, documentation, disbursement
and loan administration.

The  Company's  credit risk is  primarily  attributable to  its  loans receivables.  The  Company has
adopted stringent procedure in extending credit terns to customers  and in monitoring its  credit
risk.

The Company manages the level of credit risk it accepts through comprehensive credit risk policy,
setting out assessment and determination of what constitutes credit risk for the Company;   setting
up  exposure  limits  by each  counteaparty  or group  Of counterparties,  geographical  and  industry
segments;  guidelines  on  obtaining collateral  and  guarantees;   reporting of credit risk exposures
and breaches  to  the  monitoring  authority;    monitoring  compliance with  credit risk policy  and
review  of credit  risk  policy  for  pertinence  and  changing  environment.  All  of the  Company's
financial assets are current.

The carrying amounts of financial assets best represent the maximum credit risk exposure at the
reporting date. The amounts presented in the statements of financial position are net of allowances
for   credit   losses,   estimated   by   the   Company's   management   with   the   consideration   the
implementing rules and regulation under section 9(f) of Republic Act No. 8556.
The Company also foouses on markets and borrowers that have a relatively better capability to
repay the loans. Despite the system and checks in place for the Company, there is no guarantee
that any of its existing and future clients will default on a loan. An increase in loan defaults will
have effect on the Company's profitability.

It  is  the  Company's  policy  to  dispose  of repossessed  properties  in  an  orderly  approach  and
proceeds are used to repay or reduce the outstanding claim.

The table below presents the company's maxinum exposure to credit risk:

2017                                  2016
Cash in bank
Loans receivab les
Other receivab les
Due from related parties
Short term investment
Long term investment
Refundable de

P       39,362,128
104.mi,]61

1,820,205
2;S#Ms,06ri

176,037,124

755'680

P        74,345,485
163,889,177

147,901
14,047,821

238,192,209
470,816

P     441,028,865          P     491,093,409
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As at December 31, 2017  and 2016, the aging analysis  of the Company's financial assets is as
follows:

2017

Neitherpastdue

norinpaired

Past due account but not impaired                                   Impaired

0-30                       31.60                   61 -90                    Over 90

days pastdue    dayspastdue   dayspastdue    dayspastdue

frmcial                 Total

assets

Cash                                                 P       39,362,128                           -        P                    -      P                    -       P                    -         P                    -       P     39,362,128

LoansReceivable                                  125,002,197               8,127,318            8,417,924            5,788,486            57,695,233       (10,253,397)         194,777,761

Other receivables                                       1,820,205                                                                                                                                                               -                     1,820,205

Due from related parties                    28,275,967                                                                                                                                                          -                 28,275,967

Short ten investment                      176,037,124                                                                                                                                                     -               176,037,124

Refundable Deposit                                   755,680                                                                                                                                                                                755,680

P    371,253,301    P      8,127,318    P    8,417,924    P    5,788,486    P    57,695,233       (10,253,397)  P  441,028,865

Neither past due

norinpaired

Past due account but not inpaired

0-30                     31.60                    61 -90                   Over 90

dayspastdue   dayspastdue   dayspastdue    dayspastdue

Impaired

financial                  Total

assets

Cash

Lous Receivable

Other receivables

Duefromrelatedpaties

Longterminvestment

RefundableDeposit

P      74,345,485P                  -P                  -P                  -P

68,494,132         25,833,588          15,944,782          11,947,632

147,901

14,047,821

238,192,209

470,816

-         P                   -       P     74,345,485

72,119,692        (30,450,649)          163,889,177

147,901

-                    14,047,821

-                23 8,192,209

470,816

P     395,698,364    P 25,833,588    P  15,944,782    P  11,947,632    P    72,119,692       (30,450,649)  P   491,093,409

Management believes that there is no change in the credit quality of financial assets from the date
credit was initially granted up to the end of each reporting period.

The  following  table  details  the  credit  quality  of the  company's  neither past  due nor  impaired
financial assets :

2017

Neither past due nor impaired
Hich                  Satisfactory          Acceptable

grade                          grade                       grade Low grade                Total

Cash
Loans receivable

Other receivables

Due from related p arties

Short term investment
Refundabledeposit

P         39,362,128    P

1,820,205

2:82]5,96ri
176,037,124

755,680

-P-P-

125,002,197

P         39,362,128`

125,002,197

1,820,205

2:8;2]5.96]
176,037,124

755,680

P     246,251,104    P    12S,002,197                                                       -        P     371,253,301
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2016

Neither past due nor inpaired
Hick                Satisfactory        Acceptable

grade                      grade                   grade              Low grade                Total
Cash
Loans receivable

Other receivables

Duefromrelatedparties

Longteminvestment
Refundal]1edeposit

P        74,345,485    P                 -         P                 -         P
-              68,494,132

147,901

14,047,821

238,192,209

470,816

-         P        74,345,485
r          68,494,131

147,901

14,047,821

-                 23 8,192,209

470,816

P      327,204,232    P  68,494,132                                                       -        P      395,698,363

The Company uses  internal ratings to  determine the credit quality of its financial assets.   These
have been napped to the summary rating below:

j7z.g7!  g7.¢c7e  -  applies  to  highly  rated  financial  obligors,  strong  corporate  counterparties  and
personal borrowers with whom the company has excellent repayment experience.

Scz/i.£/c}cfory g7.crt7e - applies to financial assets that are perfoming as expected, including loans
and advances to small and medium sized entities and recently established businesses.

.4ccep/ob/e  g7.czcJe  -   applies   to   counterparties  with  risk  profiles   that   are   subject  to   closer
monitoring and scrutiny with the  objective of managing risk and moving accounts to improved
rating category.

Low g7.crc7e - applies to risks that are neither past due nor expected to result in loss but where the
company requires a workout of the relationship unless an early reduction in risk is achievable

Liquidity Risk

This is the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations as they
fall due. The Company's objectives to managing liquidity risk is to ensure, as far as possible, that
it will always  have  sufficient liquidity to meet its  liabilities when  due,  under both nomal  and
stressed  conditions,  without  incurring  unacceptable  losses   or  risking  adverse  effect  to  the
Company' s credit standing.

The  following  table  presents  the  maturity  profile  of the  Company's  financial  liabilities  as  at
December 31, 2017 and 2016 based on contractual undiscounted payments.

I)ecember 31
WithinlYear       lto2Years      2to3Years       3to4Years      4to5Years    Chrer5Years                  Total

Tradeandotherpayable*       P2,054,260                                                                                                                                                   -      P2,054260
ayable                           335,739,970                                                                                                                                                      -      335,739,970

P337,914297                                                                                                                                               -P337,914,297

December 3 I , 2016
WithinlYear       lto2Years       2to3Years       3to4Years       4to5Years     Over5Ycars                   Total

Tradeand otherpayable*   P     2,870,203                                                                                                                                                       -P     2,870,203
Loans payable                            292,654,688       128,728,740                                                                                                                             -      421.383,428

P296,229,956128,728,740                                                                                                                             -P424.253,631

* Amounts are exclusive Of nonfinancial liabilities amounting to F I,472,956 and P] ,202,481  as at December 31. 2017

and 2016.  respectively.
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The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility. As a part of liquidity risk management, the Company regularly evaluates its projected
and actual cash flows.

The table presents the Company's current ratio.

2017                                  2016
Total cunent assets                                                                       P    442,196,572         P     254,846,018
Total cunent liabilities                                                                          410,860,926                 3 75 ,9 0 8,345
Current ratio                                                                                                              1.08:1                               0.68: 1

Based on the al]ove ratios, the Company is liquid and would be atle to settle obligations as they
ffall  due,  provided  that  receivables  could  be  collected  on  a  timely  basis.  The  company  has
sufficient cash in bank to cover the payment of its current liabilities.

CaDital Management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to increase the value of the shareholders'
investment. It sets strategies with the objective of estal]lishing a resourceful financial lnanagement
structure.

Management  sees  to  it  that  equity  is  closely  monitored  in  proportion  to  risk.  Total  equity
comprises  all  components  of equrity  including  share  capital  and  accumulated  earnings  of the
Company.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debtto-equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as
total liabilities divided by total equity.

2017                                 2016
Total curent liabilities                                                                 I     410,860,926         P     375,908,345
Total non-cunent liabilities                                                                       3 ,161,139                    9 0,72 5 ,473
Total liabilities (a)                                                                                      414,022,065                  466,633,818
Total e uity (b)                                                                                                54,859,009                     53,719,051
Debt-to-e uity ratio (afo)                                                                                        7.55:1                                8.69: 1

The   Company   is   subject  to   extemally  inposed   capital  requirement.   Financing   companies
registered under Republic Act No.  8556 are required to have a minimum paid up capital of p  10
million and are required to put up additional capital requirement for each branch of p 1.00 Mllion
for branches established in Metro Manila, P 0.50 Million for branches established in other classes
of cities  and  P  0.25  Million  for  branches  established  in  municipalities.  For  the  years  ended
December  31,  2017  and  2016,  the  Company  was  in  compliance  with  the  mininum  paid-up
capital.

Fair Value of Financial Instniments

The following table presents the carrying amounts and fair values  of the Company's assets  and
liabilities measured at fair value and for which fair values  are disclosed,  and the corresponding
fair value hierarchy:

2017
Fair Value

Carrying
Note                 Amount

Quoted prices
in active
markets

Significant
observable

inputs

Significant
unobset.vabLe

inputs

Assets for wliich fair values are disclosed:
Cash
Loans receivable

39,402,128
r94.J||,JG1

39,402,128
T94,Jll,]G1
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2017
Fair Value

Carrying
Amount

Quoted I)rices
in active
markets

Significant            Significant
obs ervable       unobservable

inputs                      inputs
Level 3

Short term investment
Due from related parties
Refundable deposit
Investment 11

176,037,124
2;8,2]S,96M

755,680
10,046,069

-           176,037,124
-            TS;2]S,96M

755,680
10,046,069

449.294,729                                 -          439,248,660             10,046,069

Liabilities for which fair values
are disclosed:
Financial liabilities at amortized cost:

Trade and other payables
Due to related parties

3,482,216
71,638,740

335,739,970

-                3,482,216
-             71,638,740
-          335,739,970

410,860,926                                 -           410,860,926

2016
Fair Value

Ctrying
Amount

Quoted prices
in active
markets

Significant
observable

inputs
(Level 2

Significant
unobservable

inputs

(Level 3
Assets for which fair values are disclosed:
Cash
Loans receivable
Long term investment
Due from related parties
Refundable deposit
Investment

6                  74,375,485
7                  163,889,177
8                 23 8,192,209
9                   14,047,824
9                         470,816
11                     9, 846,069

-             74,375,485
-            163,889,177
-           238,192,209
-              14,047,824

4-70,816
9,846,069

500. 821.580                                    -           490,975,511                 9, 846,069

Liabilities for which fair values
are disclosed:
Financial liabilities at amortized cost:

Trade and other I)ayables
Advances from shareholders

4,072,684
38,680,973

422,088,493

-               4,072,6 84
-              3 8,680, 973
-           422,088,493

464,842,150                                  -           464,842.150

T  e canying amounts of cash, loans receivables, trade and other payal)1es approxinate their fair
values due to their short-tern maturities. Level 3 inputs are used in determining the fair value of
investment property.

NOTH 3o -  BAslc QUANTrrATrvE INDlcATORs

The following are the basic quantitative indicators of financial performance of the Company.

Return on average ec|uitv

This ratio is computed by dividing the net profit by the average total capital accounts.

2017                         2016
Netprofit                                                                                                    P       1,139,958    P       1,597,092
Avera e total ca ital accounts                                                                      80,200,0 00            76,200,00 0

0.01:1                           0.02:1
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Return on averaee assets

This ratio is computed by dividing the net profit by the average assets.

2017                            2016
Net profit                                                                                                   a         1,139,958    P          1,597,092
Avera

a

fi

i

i

e Assets                                                                                                 494,616 972             430,585,393
0.002:1                            0.02: 1

Net interest maratn

This ratio is computed by dividing the not profit by the interest income.

2017                            2016
Net profit                                                                                                   P         1,139,958    a         1,597,092
Avera e interest eanin assets                                                                        179,333,469             148,089,463 '

0.01:1                              0.01:1

NOTE3i-sul]pLERENTARy     scllEDULE    IN     cormLIANCE    wlTH    TRE
ARENDFD SRC RULE 68

Ratio or percentage to total estate iavestmeat to total assets

2017                           2016
Total estate investment                                                                     P                         -    P
Total assets                                                                                                             468,881,074             520,3 52, 8 69

Ratio or percentage to total receivables to total assats

2017                           2016
Totalreceivables                                                                                        P     194,777,761    P     163,889,177
Total assets                                                                                                              468,881,074             520,352,869

0.42:1                             0.31:1

Total DOSRI receivables to net worth

2017                            2016
DOSRIreceivables                                                                                  P      28,275,967    P        14,047,824
Net worth                                                                                                                54,859,009                53,719,051

0.52:1                            0.26: 1

FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

Current / Liquidity ratio

Ratio of total loans receivables to net worth

2017                            2016
Total loansreceivable                                                                             P     194,777,761    P     163,889,177
Total e 54,859,009                 53,719,051

3.55:1                             3.05:1
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Based on the above rations, the Company is highly liquid and would be able to settle obligations
as they fall due.

Solvenay rc[tio

2017                           2016
Net profit after tax plus depreciation                                               P         2,270,027    P         3,063,665
Total liabilities                                                                                                    414,022,065            466,63 3 , 818

0.01:1                           0.01:1

Debt to eqalty ratio

2017                          2016
Totalliabilities                                                                                           P     414,022,065    P     466,633,818
Total e 54,859,009                53,719,051

7.55:1                           8.69: 1

Asset to equity ratio

2017                             2016  -.

Totalasset                                                                                                    P     468,881,074    P     520,352,869
Total e 54,859,009                53,719,051

8.55:1                          9.69: 1

Interest rate coverage ratio

2017                              2016
Incomefromloan                                                                                  P       45,605,869    P         54,216,016
Avera e interest eamin assets                                                                     179,333 ,469             14 8,0 89,463 3

0.25:1                                 0.37: 1

Profitabilrty ratio

a.)  Prof it margin ratio

2017                            2016
Netprofitaftertax                                                                                 P        1,139,958    a          1,597,092
Net income before tax 1,258,778                   1,800,449

0.90:1                            0.89: 1

b.)   R;eturn on assetratio

2017                            2016
Net profit after tax                                                                                P          1,139,958    P         1,597,092
Total assets 468,881,074              520,352,869

0.002:1                         0.003:1
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c.)   Return on net worth ratio

2017                             2016
Netprofitaftertax                                                                                  P        1,139,958    P         1,597,092
Total e 54,859,009                 53,719,051

0.02:1                             0.03:1

D

I
D

I
D

B

I
I
i

NOTE 32 -   SUPPLERENTARY  INFORMATION REQUIRED  BY  THE  BUREAU  0F
INTERNAL  REVENtJE  UNDER  REVENUE  REGULATION  NO.  15-2010
AND 19-2011

The following infomation are presented for purposes of filing with the BIR and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements.

REVENUE REGULATION 15-2010

Gross Receipts Tax

In lieu of the VAT, the Company is subject to the gross receipts tax (GRT) pursuant to Sections
121  and 122 of the Tax Code which is imposed on banks, non-bank financial intemediaries and
financing   companies.   In   2017,   the   Company  reported   Gross   Receipt   Tax   amounting   to
P 1,561,259. The tax is levied on the Company's lending income which includes interest income
and service income. The tax is computed at the prescribed rate of 5% and is presented as part of
the "Taxes and Licenses" account under Operating Expense in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Taxes and Licenses for 2017

Amount
Gross Receipts Tax
Business pemit and licenses
Documentary stamp tax
Others

P            1,561,259
260,743
250,171

37,515

P           2,109,688

Witltholding Taxes f tor 2017

Withholding taxes paid and accrued for the year 2017 as follows:

Amount
Withholding tax on compensation                                                                                    P          1,429,446
Withholding tax at source (expanded)                                                                                             347,831
Withholdin tax -final                                                                                                                             671,654

P          2,448,931

Tax Assessments and Cases

The Company did not receive any Letter of Authority or Tax Verification Notice from the Bureau
of Internal Revenue @R) during the period. It has no pending exanination of prior years.
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Revenue Regulation 19-2012

The information required by the above regulation, which became effective on December 9, 2011
is presented below:

Revenue for 2017

Exem t                          RCIT
Interest and finance fees                                                               P                           -         P       40,648,668
Processing fees on loans                                                                                                                        3,213,401
Deferment fee income                                                                                                                     1,743,800

P                            -          P        45,605,869

Other Inconef ;or 2017

Exem t                           RCIT
Interest income on bank deposits
Unrealized gain (loss) on translation of investment and
loans payable, net
Realized gain (loss) on settlement of loans, net
Miscellaneous income

P          1,468,448           P

(5,416,836)
3,015,777
1,650,553

P       (3,948,388)           P           4,666,330

D

0

0

i
0

I
I
I

i
I

Direct Costs fior 2017

Exem t                           RCIT
Finance cost Ovote 21)
Salaries, bonus and allowances QTote 24)
Rental
Depreciation Orote 22)
Transportation and travel
Finance service charge
HDNI, Philhealth and SSS contribution OJote 24)
Electricity and water
Communication
Office supplies
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance
Gasoline and oil

resentation and entertainment

P               605,735           P        17,101,094
4,693,781
1,498,003
1,130,069

600,787
5;J6,Jgr9
459,403
357,238
257,471
170,461

148,718

138,927
94,278
76,450

P              605,735          P        27,303,468

Itendzed I)eductions i;or 2 017

t                           RCIT
Salaries, bonus and allowances OJote 24)
Professional fee
Taxes and Licenses
Unifom, medical and etc.
Impairment loss Ovote 7 and 23)
Consultancy fee
Retirement expense
Bank charges
Representation

-          P          6,630,995

2,891,742
2,109,688
1,125,868

1,025,767
8;J7 '$2;5

664,406
465,571
313,771
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Repair and maintenance
Advertising and promo
mMF, Philhealth and SSS contribution QTote 24)
Transportation and travel
Honorarium/D irector's fee
Insurance
Communication
Gasoline and oil
Membership and subscription
Donations and gifts
Miscellaneous

205,243
143,740
107,251

97,803
91,219
88,822
64,368
15,348
11,278
6,690

218,434
P              669,406          P        16,491,423

i
I
i
D

i
8

I

I
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EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ANI) INTERPRETATIONS
I]ECErmER 31, 2017

Title Adopted
NotAdopted NotApplicable

Framework for the Preparation and Prcscntation ofFinancial Statcmcnts

Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative characteristics

PFRSs Practise Statement Management Commentary

Pliilippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs)

0

I
0

D

PFTrs Tittc Adopted
NotAdoD'Cd NotAi)Dlicable

PFRS 1 a`evised)
First-time Adoption of phiLippine Financial Reporting

V
Standards
Amendments to PFRS  1 : Additional Exemptions for First-
tine AdoDters

Amendment to PFRS 1 : Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters

Amendments to PFRS  i : S evere Hyperinflation and Removal
of Fixed Date for First-tine AdoDters
Amendments to PFRS  1 : Government Loans

PFRS 2 Share-based Payment
Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations
Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-based
Pavment Transactions

PFRS 3 Qevised) Business Combinations

Amendment to PFRS 3 : Accounting for Contingent
V

Consideration in a Business Combination

Amendment to PFRS 3 : Scope Exceptions for Joint Ventures

PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee Contracts V

PFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued

V
ODerations

Amendment to PFRS 5: Changes in Methods of Disposal

PFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures V

Amendments to PFRS 7 : Reclassification of Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7 : Reclassification ofFinancial Assets
- Effective Date and Transition
Amendments to PFRS 7 : Improving Disclosures about

V
Financial Instruments
Amendments to PFRS 7 : Disclosures -Transfers ofFinancial

v,
Assets
Amendments to PFRS 7 : Disclosures -Offsetting Financial

V
Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to PFRS 7 : Mandatory Effective Date ofpFRS

v'
9 and Transition Disclosures
Amendment to PFRS 7 : Servicing Contracts V



PFRS Title Adopted
NotAdoDtcd NotADDlicablc

Amendment to PFRS 7: Applicability of the Amendments to
PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial Statements

PFRS 8 Operating Segments V

Amendments to PFRS 8 : Aggregation of operating Segments

Amendments to PFRS 8: Reconciliation of the Total of the
Reportable Segments' Assets to the Entity'.s Assets

PFRS 9 Financial Instruments

PFRS  10 Consolidated Financial Statements V

Amendments to PFRS 10: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities V

Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation ExceDtion

PFRS  1 1 Joint Arrangements

Amendments to PFRS 11 : Transition Guidance
Amendments to PFRS 11 : Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Ooerations

PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12: Transition Guidance
Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entities V

Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entities: Applying the V
Consolidation Exccotion
Amendment to PFRS 12: Clarification of the Scope of theStandard

PFRS  13 Fair Value Measurement
Amendment to PFRS 13 : Short-term receivables andPavables

Amendment to PFRS  13 : Poltfolio Exception
PFRS  14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Philippine Accounting Standards Q'AS)

FAS Tit]c Adopted
NotAdot,ted NotAODlicable

PAS 1 Q`evised) Presentation of Financial Statements v'

Amendments to PAS 1 : Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation
Amendments to PAS 1 : Presentation of ltems Of Other
ComDrehensive Income
Amendment to PAS  1 : Clarification of the Requirements for
ComDarative Presentation
Amendments to PAS 1 : Disclosure Initiative

PAS2 hventories
PAS7 Statement of Cash Flows V

Amendments to PAS 7 : Disclosure Initiative V

PAS8
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and

V
Errors

PAS  10 Events after the Reporting Period
PAS  1 1 Construction Contracts V

FAS  12 Income Taxes V

Amendments to PAS 12 -Deferred Tax: Recovery of
V

Underlying Assets
Amendments to PAS  12 : Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

V
for Unrealized Losses

PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
Amendment to PAS  16: Classification of Servieing
Eciuii]ment



PFRS Title Adopted
NotAdoDted NotADDlicable

Amendment to FAS  16: Revaluation Method -Proportionate V
Restatement of Accumulated Depreciation

Amendment to PAS  16: Property, Plant and Equipment -
Clarification ofAcceptatile Methods of Depreciation and
Amortization
Amendment to FAS 16: Agriculture: Bearer Plants

PAS  17 Leases V

PAS  18 Revenue

PAS 19 Qevised) Employee Benefits

Amendment to PAS  19: Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions
Amendment to FAS  19: Discount Rate: Regional MarketIssue

FAS 20
Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance

PAS 21 The Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

PAS 23 a`evised) Borrowing Costs

PAS 24 Qevised) Related Prty Disclosures V

Amendment to PAS 24: Key Management Personnel

PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans

FAS 27(Amended`
Separate Financial Statements V

Amendments to PAS 27 : Investment Entities
Amendments   to   PAS   27:   Equity   Method   in   Separate V
Financial Statements

FAS 28/Amended)
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments  to FAS  28:  Investment Entities:  Applying the
Consolidation Excel]tion

PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

PAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures

PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation
Financial Instruments: Presentation
Amendments to PAS 32 : Puttable Financial Instrunients and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Amendment to PAS 32 : Classification of Rights Issues

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
Amendments to PAS 32 : Tax Effect of Distribution to
Holders of Equity Instruments

FAS 33 Earnings per Share V

FAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting V

Amendment to FAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting and
v'

Segment Infomation for Total Assets and Liabilities

Amendment to PAS 34: Disclosure of lnformation
`Elsewhere in the Interim Financial Rei]ort'

PAS 36 ImpairmentofAssets
Amendments to FAS 3 6 : Recoverable Amount Disclosures

V
for Non-Financial Assets

PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets V

FAS 38 Intangible Assets V



I'FRS Title Adopted
NotAdoDtcd NotAunlicable

Amendment to FAS 3 8 : Revaluation Method -Proportionate
Restatement of Accumulated Amortization

Amendment to PAS 3 8 : Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortization

FAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement V

Amendments to PAS 39 : Transition and Initial Recognition
v,

ofFinancial Assets and Financial Liabiuties

Amendments to FAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of
Forecast intragrouD Transactions
Amendments to FAS 39: The Fair Value Option

Amendments to PAS 39: Financial Guarantee Contracts

Amendments to FAS 39: Reclassification of Financial Assets V

Amendments to PAS 39: Reclassification ofFinancial Assets
-Effective Date and Transition

Amendments PAS 39 : Embedded Derivatives

Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items
Amendments   to   FAS   39:   Novation   of  Derivatives   and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

FAS 40 Investmentproperty

Amendment  to   FAS   40:   Clarifying   the  Interrelationship
between PFRS  3  and FAS  40 when Classifying Property as
Investment Property or Owner-occupied Property

FAS 41 Agriculture
Amendment to FAS 41 : Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Philippine Interpretations

Interpretations Title Adopted
NotAdoDted NotAI)Dlicablc

ITRIC 1
Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and
S imilar Liabilities

IFRIC 2
Members' Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar

v'
Instruments

IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an AITangement Contains a Lease

IFRIC 5
Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

IFRIC 6
Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market -
Waste Electrical and Electronic Eauioment

HRIC 7
Ap|]lying the Restatement Approach under FAS 29 Financial

V
Reoorting in Hvoerinflationarv Economies

IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 :

v'
Embedded Derivatives

IFRIC  I-0 Interim Financial Reporting and lmpainent
HRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements V

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes V

IfRIC 14
FAS  19 -The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum
Funding Reciuirements and their Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC-14,
Pi.eDavments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

IFRIC 16 Hedges of aNet Investment in a Foreign Operation
IFRIC 17 Distributions ofNon-cash Assets to Owners v,

IFRIC  18 Transfers of Assets from Customers

IFRIC 19 ExtinguisliingFinancialLiab`ilitieswithEquftylnstruments V

fi



PFRS Title Adopted
NotAdoDtcd NotADDlicablc

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production I'hase of a Surface Mine

IFRIC 2 1 Levies

PHILIPPINE INTERPRETATIONS - SIC

Interpretations Title Adopted
NotAdoDted NotADDlicable

SIC-7 Introduction of the Euro V

SIC-10
Government Assistance -No Specific Relation to Operating
Activities

SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives

SIC-25
Income Taxes -Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its
Shareholders

SIC-27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of aLease

SIC-29 S ervice Concession Arrangements: Disclosures. V

SIC-3l
Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising

v'
Services

SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs V


